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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

b ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001
or

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-24975

WebMD Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 94-3236644
(State of incorporation) (I.R.S. employer identification no.)
669 River Drive, Center 2 07407-1361
Elmwood Park, New Jersey (Zip code)

(Address of principal executive office)
(Registrant s telephone number including area code): (201) 703-3400
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common Stock, par value $.0001 per share

(Title of each class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports); and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes b No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference into Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. p
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The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant (based upon the closing sale price of $8.17 on
March 15, 2002, as reported on the Nasdaq Stock Market s National Market and, for purposes of this computation only, the assumption that all of
the registrant s directors and executive officers are affiliates) was approximately $2,325,775,845. As of March 15, 2002, the registrant had
outstanding 312,383,902 shares of common stock.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains both historical and forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of

historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not based on historical facts, but
rather reflect management s current expectations concerning future results and events. These forward-looking statements generally can be
identified by use of expressions such as believe, expect, anticipate, intend, plan, foresee, likely, will or other similar words or phras
statements that describe our objectives, plans or goals are or may be forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be different from
any future results, performance and achievements expressed or implied by these statements. In addition to the risk factors described in

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Factors That May Affect Our Future Financial
Condition or Results of Operations beginning on page 54, the following important risks and uncertainties could affect future results, causing
these results to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements:

the failure to achieve sufficient levels of customer utilization and market acceptance of new services or newly integrated services
the inability to successfully deploy new applications or newly integrated applications

difficulties in forming and maintaining mutually beneficial relationships with customers and strategic partners

the inability to attract and retain qualified personnel

general economic, business or regulatory conditions affecting the healthcare, information technology and Internet industries being less
favorable than expected.

These factors and the risk factors described in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Factors That May Affect Our Future Financial Condition or Results of Operations beginning on page 54 are not necessarily all of the important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. Other unknown or
unpredictable factors also could have material adverse effects on our future results. The forward-looking statements included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K are made only as of the date of this Annual Report. We expressly disclaim any intent or obligation to update any
forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

General Information

WebMD Corporation is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated in December 1995 and commenced operations in January 1996 as
Healtheon Corporation. Our principal executive offices are located at 669 River Drive, Center 2, Elmwood Park, New Jersey 07407-1361 and
our telephone number is (201) 703-3400.

Our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol HLTH since February 11, 1999. In May 1998, Healtheon
Corporation completed a merger with ActaMed Corporation. In November 1999, Healtheon completed mergers with WebMD, Inc., MedE
America Corporation and Greenberg News Networks, Inc., known as Medcast. Following these mergers, Healtheon changed its name to
Healtheon/ WebMD Corporation. Healtheon/ WebMD completed acquisitions of Kinetra LLC and Envoy Corporation in January 2000 and May
2000, respectively. On September 12, 2000, Healtheon/ WebMD completed mergers with Medical Manager Corporation, Carelnsite, Inc. and
OnHealth Network Company and changed its name to WebMD Corporation. In December 2001, WebMD acquired the portal assets of
Medical.ogic/ Medscape, Inc., which we refer to as Medscape. For additional information regarding these transactions, see note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

Overview of Our Business

We provide a range of transaction and information services and technology solutions for participants across the entire continuum of
healthcare, including physicians and other healthcare providers, payers, suppliers and consumers. Our products and services promote
administrative efficiency and assist in reducing the cost of healthcare and creating better patient outcomes. Our business is divided into the
following three segments:

Transaction Services or WebMD Envoy. Through our WebMD Envoy transaction network, we transmit electronic transactions between
healthcare payers and physicians, pharmacies, dentists, hospitals, laboratory companies and other healthcare providers. The transactions
that we facilitate include:

administrative transactions, such as claims submission and status inquiry, eligibility and patient coverage verification, referrals and
authorizations, and electronic remittance advice; and

clinical transactions, such as lab test ordering and reporting of results.

Most of our electronic transactions are conducted by healthcare providers using computers, modems and ordinary phone lines to connect
to our clearinghouse. Information is typically sent from the provider s billing or practice management system to our clearinghouse, where
it is validated for format and completeness and then sent to the payer s computer. Some of these transactions are transmitted securely over
the Internet. In either case, there are important advantages for healthcare participants in using electronic transactions as compared to mail,
fax or telephone: electronic transactions significantly reduce processing time and costs, which increases efficiency and productivity for
both payers and providers. We are focused on continuing to increase the percentage of healthcare transactions that are handled
electronically and on providing value-added services to providers and payers in connection with our transmission of transactions.

Physician Services or WebMD Medical Manager. We develop and market integrated physician practice management systems under The
Medical Manager brand. Our practice management solutions include:

administrative and financial applications that enable physicians and their administrative personnel to manage their practices more
efficiently; and
3
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clinical applications that assist physicians in delivering quality patient care.

The Medical Manager systems allow physician offices to automate their scheduling, billing and other administrative tasks, to maintain
electronic medical records and to automate documentation of patient encounters. In addition, The Medical Manager systems provide
integrated access to our WebMD Envoy transaction services.

The ongoing development of ULTIA™, our wireless handheld solution, is one of the ways in which we continue to meet the changing
demands of physicians. Physicians are able to use ULTIA in their offices, at the point-of-care, to access data within The Medical
Manager system and perform a range of clinical and administrative tasks. ULTIA also provides a range of offsite functionality and can
easily be used at hospitals and other remote locations. Up to ten days of hospital rounds and patient data can be downloaded to the
handheld device. This information is then accessible to the physician when working at a remote location. The physician can enter new
data and capture patient charges, all of which are then uploaded to The Medical Manager system when the physician returns to the office.

Portal Services or WebMD Health. WebMD Health offers a variety of online resources and services for consumers and healthcare
professionals.

WebMD Health Consumer Portal. WebMD Health, our consumer portal, is located at www.my.webmd.com. WebMD Health helps
people become better informed about healthcare choices and assists them in playing an active role in managing their own health. We
provide online access to health and wellness news and information, support communities, special events, interactive tools and other
services. Our communities and events allow consumers to participate in real-time discussions in our chat rooms and on our message
boards, with experts and with people who share similar health conditions or concerns. Consumers are also welcome to access content
at our Medscape professional portal. We recently began the integration of Medscape Health s content and tools into WebMD Health.

Medscape Professional Portal. Medscape, our portal for physicians and allied healthcare professionals, is located at
www.medscape.com. At Medscape, physicians and other healthcare professionals can access continuing medical education services,
medical journals, textbooks and data bases, specialty-focused medical news and medical conference coverage, and opportunities to
purchase other products and services. We recently began the integration of the WebMD professional portal s content and tools into
Medscape.

Portal Relationships. We also distribute our content and services to leading general consumer Internet portals and media distribution
partners, including MSN, AOL and News Corporation. In addition, we provide content and services to payers and other healthcare
partners Web sites for use by their affiliated physicians and consumers.

We believe that our user base of consumers and healthcare professionals represents an attractive audience to a variety of advertisers and
sponsors who are interested in influencing healthcare decisions. We are working with our advertisers and sponsors to develop innovative
online and offline programs that provide demonstrable results and complement their offline education, marketing and customer service
programs.

For a more complete description of our services and the solutions that we offer, see Our Products and Services beginning on page 6. For
information regarding the revenues of each of our segments, see Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations  Results of Operations for 2001 by Operating Segment on page 50 and note 7 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report.

We believe that the combination, in one company, of WebMD Envoy, WebMD Medical Manager and WebMD Health makes us well
positioned to create significant improvements in the way that
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information is used by the healthcare system, enabling increased efficiency, better decision-making and, ultimately, higher quality patient care at
a lower cost.

Restructuring and Integration

After our mergers with Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth in the third quarter of 2000, our Board of Directors approved a
restructuring and integration plan, with the objective of eliminating duplication and redundancies that resulted from the acquisitions made by our
company since November 1999 and consolidating our operational infrastructure into a common platform to more efficiently serve our
customers. Our restructuring and integration efforts continued in 2001, and a new plan to include the impact of eliminating duplicate functions
resulting from the acquisition of Medscape was initiated in the fourth quarter of 2001.

In connection with our restructuring and integration efforts:

approximately 615 employees during 2001 and approximately 1,100 employees during 2000 were identified and notified of termination,
principally as a result of eliminating duplicate functions resulting from acquisitions;

we have terminated leases, allowed leases to expire or entered into subleases with respect to approximately 100 leased facilities;
we have consolidated our sales forces into groups focused on specific products and customers;
we have reduced the number of switches that we use to provide transaction services from more than 25 to less than 10; and

we have phased out products and services that were duplicative or unprofitable and rationalized our product and service lines.

Additionally, as part of our restructuring and integration efforts, we undertook a review of our strategic relationships in light of several
criteria, including strategic relevance to us and to the other party, potential conflicts with other relationships as a result of the numerous
acquisitions we had made, profitability and impact on future revenue streams. As a result of this process, we entered into negotiations to revise
or terminate many of those relationships. In some cases, we were able to redefine the relationships in a manner that better serves the needs of
each party. In other cases, these discussions have resulted in termination of the relationships. As a result of the revisions to and terminations of
our relationships, we have eliminated obligations or commitments that no longer fit with our core businesses and strategies, substantially
reduced our obligations to share our revenues with third parties and other future payment and funding obligations, removed restrictions on the
areas in which we can conduct business, and made WebMD a better partner for the relationships that continue. For additional information
regarding some of our significant relationships and transactions, see note 3 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

In connection with our restructuring and integration efforts, we have recorded restructuring and integration charges of:
$266.8 million, of which $185.5 million were non-cash charges, in the year ended December 31, 2001; and

$452.9 million, of which $380.0 million were non-cash charges, in the year ended December 31, 2000.

We expect that our restructuring and integration efforts will be completed during 2002.

For additional information regarding our restructuring and integration efforts, see Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations  Restructuring and Integration Initiatives on page 41 and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements in
this Annual Report.
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Our Products and Services

There are many types of transactions, information exchanges and other communications that occur between the various participants in the
healthcare industry, including physicians, patients, pharmacies, dentists, hospitals, billing services, commercial health insurance companies,
pharmacy benefit management companies, managed care organizations, state and federal government agencies and others. We offer a
comprehensive suite of transaction and information services and technology solutions to healthcare industry participants. These integrated and
stand-alone products and services are designed to facilitate transactions, information exchange and communication among healthcare industry
participants and to operate on various platforms, including the Internet, private intranets and other networks.

Transaction Services or WebMD Envoy

Our Systems. WebMD Envoy provides an electronic link between multiple third party healthcare payers and healthcare providers in the
medical, pharmacy and dental markets. WebMD Envoy includes certain transaction operations of Envoy, Healtheon, Kinetra, MedE America,
ActaMed, WebMD, Inc. and Carelnsite. The customers for our transaction services consist of healthcare providers, such as physicians,
pharmacies, dentists and hospitals, and healthcare payers, including Medicare and Medicaid agencies, Blue Cross and Blue Shield organizations,
pharmacy benefit management companies, commercial health insurance companies and managed care organizations. We provide those
customers the administrative and clinical connectivity and transaction services described below through an integrated electronic transaction
processing system, which includes proprietary software, host computer hardware, network management, switching services and interfaces. We
refer to these services as electronic data interchange or EDI. Healthcare payers and providers pay fees to us for these services, generally on a per
transaction basis or, in the case of some providers, as a flat rate per month. Transaction fees vary according to the type of transaction and other
factors, such as volume level commitments. We may also charge one-time implementation fees to providers and payers.

Connectivity. Providers access our transaction services both directly and through their affiliations with integrated delivery networks, clinics
and physician practice and hospital information management companies. Providers initiate transactions using our proprietary applications, their
practice management systems or other computer systems or networks. Providers submit transactions to our clearinghouse by modem connections
using regular telephone lines, using dedicated high speed telecommunications services and over the Internet. At our clearinghouse, the
transaction is edited for accuracy, validated for format and completeness, then translated in accordance with the payer s specifications and sent to
the payer s claims adjudication and/or real-time database systems.

Our clearinghouse maintains direct connections with many healthcare payers, including Medicare contractors and Medicaid agencies, Blue
Cross and Blue Shield organizations, commercial health insurance companies, pharmacy benefit management companies and managed care
organizations. These direct connections typically consist of dedicated networks between the payer and our clearinghouse. Most transactions are
currently transmitted to the payers using our proprietary software, data format specifications and dedicated telephone lines, with some
transmitted securely over the Internet. We have developed innovative programs that work with payers, providers and practice management
system vendors to try to increase the percentage of healthcare transactions that are transmitted electronically and the value of such transactions
to our customers. Other clearinghouses also use our services to transmit transactions to payers that they have received from providers. We make
payments, based on volume, to some of these clearinghouses as an inducement to use WebMD Envoy to complete the transactions submitted
through their systems.

Medical, Dental and Pharmacy Administrative Services. Our administrative services provide the connectivity and transaction processing
services needed for providers and payers in the healthcare industry to automate key business functions and communicate with each other. Our
administrative services include claims submission and status inquiry, eligibility and patient benefit coverage verification, referrals and
authorizations, claims data capture and editing, electronic remittance advice and patient billing services.

6
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Our administrative services reduce paperwork and the need for communication by mail, telephone and fax, resulting in cost savings for payers
and providers. These services also expedite the reimbursement process, which can result in a lower average number of outstanding accounts
receivable days for providers. A further benefit to payers is that they are able to more easily detect fraud and screen for unusual utilization
trends. In addition, the availability of online encounter and referral information provides more efficient medical cost management for managed
care organizations and networked providers.

Providers can use our services to verify patient enrollment and eligibility and to obtain authorization from payers, at the point of care, for
services and referrals to other providers. Providers can submit real-time or batch claims to us for processing and reimbursement by payers and
inquire as to the status of claims previously submitted. Most claims are submitted to us as batch claims, which are collected by providers
throughout the day and submitted to us in bulk. We then sort, format and edit the claims to meet a particular payer s requirements before
transmission to the payer. Providers can receive an electronic remittance advice which provides payer payment information and an explanation
of the settlement of a related claim. We also offer automated patient billing services to providers that include electronic data transmission and
formatting, statement printing and mailing services.

A typical pharmacy benefit transaction takes place in a real-time setting using a pharmacy management system or other claim submission
product. The claim is submitted to WebMD Envoy in a standard format and includes all required information about the prescription. The claim is
then routed to the appropriate adjudicating processor where the claim is processed within seconds. Response information includes patient
coverage, formulary compliance (specific drug coverage), potential drug interactions, patient s co-payment due and anticipated reimbursement
amount due to the pharmacy from the payer. Final dollar amounts due to the pharmacy are typically paid by the payer 15-30 days after claim
submission.

Value-Added Services. We have initiated steps to enhance the quantity, quality and value to payers and providers of our administrative
transactions.

We are working with our practice management system vendor partners to integrate real-time transactions into their provider software
systems. Medical Manager is incorporating our full suite of real-time services into their software, making these transactions available to
the provider in their normal office workflow. These real-time services reduce administrative cost for payers and providers.

We also offer payers the opportunity to work with us in targeted programs to educate physicians to send more electronic claims. When a
payer agrees to participate in such a program, WebMD utilizes information supplied by the payer to target providers that may not be
sending claims electronically.

Our all-payer suite of services includes the capture, validation and routing of claims transactions on behalf of not just commercial payers,
but also Blue Cross Blue Shield payers, Medicare and Medicaid. Additionally, our all-payer services include the return of an electronic
remittance transaction, which is the equivalent of a paper explanation of benefits, from all the payers back to the originating provider. The
goal is to provide a single source EDI reimbursement cycle management solution for providers and practice management system vendors.
A single EDI solution reduces administrative burdens on the provider office in sending claims transactions and receiving electronic
remittance advice transactions and, more importantly, allows us to provide a single report back to the provider office regarding those
transactions. That, in turn, allows the provider office to determine more easily whether it has been paid on a particular claim and how
much. Provider offices without such a solution typically receive five or more different reports that they then have to reconcile in order to
manage their accounts receivable. We are expanding our connectivity to support a broader set of transaction services to non-commercial
payers in key markets as well as improving the functional capability of our claims and accounts receivable management solutions in order
to improve the quality and value of our services to both payers and providers. We have initiated a phased roll-out plan of our all-payer
services in 15 target states, both directly to

7
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healthcare providers and through our practice management system partners. We plan a broader rollout later in 2002.

Lab Ordering and Reporting Services. We provide clinical lab ordering and reporting services through dedicated terminals and teleprinters
and through WebMD Clinician, our Internet-based product. These products support the ordering of clinical tests and the reporting of test results
between healthcare providers and labs. WebMD Clinician reduces costs and improves the quality of patient care by improving order entry
accuracy and expediting the delivery of lab results, while enhancing the ability to share those results with multiple physicians.

Relationships with Practice Management System Vendors. We work with numerous practice management system vendors and other
physician service providers to provide integrated transaction processing between their systems and our clearinghouse. Most practice
management systems support, and can be integrated with, WebMD Envoy transaction services. Practice management system vendors are in a
position to market EDI transactions to healthcare providers that use their systems, but require a clearinghouse through which they can connect to
payers in order to complete the processing of the transactions. Many practice management system vendors, including WebMD Medical
Manager, market a private label brand of our transaction services that they have integrated with their systems. We pay a sales commission, based
on volume, to some of these vendors as an inducement to use WebMD Envoy as the clearinghouse for the transactions made through their
systems. We have long-standing relationships with many vendors of physician practice management systems, including Misys Healthcare
Systems, IDX Systems Corporation and Vitalworks Inc. on a national level, as well as over 500 regional and local vendors. We work together
with these vendors to increase the percentage of healthcare transactions that are handled electronically.

HIPAA. We believe that we are an industry leader in regulatory compliance practices and that we are well-positioned to assist payers,
providers and other healthcare participants with the implementation of their own regulatory compliance practices, including their need to meet
the requirements of regulations issued under the Healthcare Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA. We will market
HIPAA-ready provider transaction methods, as well as offer our payer customers and other healthcare participants support in their own
compliance efforts. In addition, healthcare payers and providers who are unable to exchange data in the required standard formats can achieve
HIPAA transaction standards compliance by contracting with a clearinghouse, like WebMD Envoy, to translate between standard and
non-standard formats. We are continuing to develop our HIPAA-ready solutions and our business strategy for marketing those solutions and
services. Changes in compliance deadlines or in other aspects of the HIPAA regulations may cause us to make changes to our strategy or require
us to develop different solutions. For additional information regarding HIPAA, see Business Government Regulation beginning on page 20.

WebMD Office. Through our WebMD Office Internet-based service, accessible through WebMD.com, physician office staff, hospital
emergency room, admitting and business office staff, as well as lab and billing services can access our Internet-based transaction services.
WebMD Office automates key business office functions and processes multiple transactions with healthcare payers. The service can be accessed
through either a standard dial-up or high speed DSL or cable modem. WebMD Office can be used as a stand-alone system or as a complement to
a practice management system through an import and data management function that allows transactions to be generated from the practice
management system and submitted through WebMD Office.

Long-Term Goals. Our long-term goals include achieving bi-directional, real-time information flows between healthcare providers and
payers that are fully integrated into the workflow of the provider. We intend to try to generate additional revenue by communicating clinical
messages at the point-of-care in accordance with patient-and plan-specific guidelines, including messaging regarding formulary compliance and
disease management programs. However, our ability to achieve these goals is limited by, among other things, the current state of the
communications infrastructure in most physician offices. In the future, as persistent broadband connections become more widespread, we
believe that our ability to deliver
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coordinated and integrated healthcare information technology products and services will provide us with a strong foundation for succeeding in
these goals.

Physician Services or WebMD Medical Manager

Overview. We provide comprehensive physician practice management information systems to physician organizations and other providers
of healthcare services in the United States. We develop, market and support The Medical Manager® practice management system, which
addresses the financial, administrative, clinical and practice management needs of physician practices. The system has been implemented in a
wide variety of practice settings from small physician groups to large clinics. These proprietary systems enable physicians and their
administrative staffs to efficiently manage their practices while delivering quality patient care in a dynamic healthcare environment.

The Medical Manager software is an integrated practice management system encompassing patient care, clinical, financial and management
applications. Due to its scalable design, The Medical Manager software is a cost-effective solution in a stand-alone or enterprise-wide
environment. The Medical Manager system is designed to operate on a wide range of hardware platforms used by small, medium and large sized
practices. Its modular, fully integrated product portfolio allows clients to add incremental capabilities to existing information systems while
minimizing the need for capital investments. We also offer The Medical Manager system in customized formats to meet the functionality needs
of radiologists, public health and community health markets and family planning clinics.

We are preparing for the release of Version 10 of The Medical Manager software, which includes new features that, among other things,
provide enhanced reporting and billing capabilities. We anticipate that we will be commercially releasing Version 10 at the end of the second
quarter of 2002.

We also seek to develop additional products and services to continue to meet the changing demands of providers, including:

ULTIA, our wireless handheld solution, is approaching full release throughout the United States. Providers are able to use ULTIA at the
point-of-care to access data within The Medical Manager system and enter new information, as described more fully below on page 12.

Intergy, our new practice management system product, is described below on page 12. Intergy has been designed to provide a user-friendly
interface with data storage capacity that will accommodate the largest of our installations.
Healthcare providers pay us one-time fees for the purchase of The Medical Manager practice management systems or of additional system
modules and also pay us recurring fees for maintenance and support of their practice management systems, including the hardware and software.
We license ULTIA to physician practices on a per provider per month subscription basis.
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The Medical Manager. The Medical Manager system provides physician practices with a broad range of patient care and practice
management features, including:

Core Application. The Medical Manager Core Application includes base financial, clinical and practice management functions.

Product Description

The Medical Manager software Provides accounts receivable, insurance billing, basic appointment
scheduling and recalls, clinical history, financial history, referral of
physician information, encounter form tracking, e-mail, office notes,
advanced notice generator, hospital rounds and over 150 standard
reports

MMClient® A Graphical User Interface/ Windows®-based Ultra-Thin Client
user interface to The Medical Manager software connecting to either
a Windows 2000/ NT® or a UNIX server

Office Management. The Medical Manager Office Management application automates the essential administrative tasks of a physician

practice.
Product Description
Automated Collections Maintains notes, promise to pay dates, budget payments, next action
to be taken indicators and prints collection letters
Automates tickler system to alert the user when an account needs
attention
Chart and X-Ray Locator Tracks the location of a patient s medical and X-ray charts
Advanced Billing Handles sophisticated billing needs
Custom Report Writer Provides access to all data elements of The Medical Manager
software
Allows for the creation of user-defined custom reports
Multiple Resource Scheduling Includes multi-resource display, search and posting of scheduled

appointments; coordinates the utilization of exam rooms and
equipment and schedules of teams of physicians, nurses, therapists
and others whose services are needed within a specific time sequence

Patient Flow Tracking Allows patient encounters to be tracked from the time the patient
makes the appointment, through encounters in the waiting room,
examination rooms, labs and other areas

Case Management System Tracks all clinical events related to a specific case

Laser Form Generator Encounter forms, prescriptions, insurance forms, patient bills and
statements, referrals, letterheads and other forms can be printed

10
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Managed Care Applications. The Medical Manager Managed Care Applications allow physicians to contain costs and deliver a higher
quality of care in capitated environments.

Product Description

Managed Care In addition to the managed care features offered in the base system,
supports the full functions required to track incoming as well as
outgoing referrals to facilities and specialists

Claims Adjudication Fully integrated with the Managed Care module, provides full risk
management capabilities, including the processing of received
claims, comparing the claim against authorized services to determine
amounts due, generating checks for payments and producing an
Explanation of Benefits

Imaging Applications. The Medical Manager Document and Image Management suite of products provides practices with the ability to
move toward a paperless office.

Product Description
Document and Image Management System with Digital Office Allows a practice to scan, store, catalog and retrieve documents and
Manager® images in an electronic form while maintaining their original format.

The scanned documentation becomes part of the patient s medical
record and can be accessed from multiple workstations
simultaneously.

DIM ,, ™ The diagnostic version of the Document and Image Management
System, allows a practice to organize and store X-rays and other
diagnostic images, as well as forms and documents, as images and to
instantly retrieve these images to the screen as part of the patient s
medical record

Clinical Applications. The Medical Manager Clinical Applications provide fully-integrated components of a patient s medical record
that contain the functionality and knowledge bases required in today s practices.

Product Description
uality Care Guidelines Automates the process of tracking both the curative and preventive
y p g p
services the practice has specified that it wishes to perform
OmniChart® Enables the practice to create and maintain a patient s medical record

using the laboratory interface module, prescription writer, view
patient chart, clinical task manager and the transcription management
system, and the phone messaging system

OmniDoc Automates the documentation of a patient encounter at the point of
care by allowing a provider to easily generate progress notes using a
medical knowledge base, eliminating the need for dictation and
transcription
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We believe that the HIPAA privacy standards rule will drive increased adoption of electronic imaging applications and clinical applications
because such solutions can make it easier for providers to fulfill their obligations under the rule, including with respect to managing and
documenting usage restrictions, as well as with respect to providing patients with access to and the ability to amend their records. We believe
that, as a result of the need to be HIPAA-compliant, existing users of The Medical Manager software will become more likely to add our
integrated imaging and clinical solutions to their current configuration of The Medical Manager practice management system. For additional
information regarding HIPAA, see Business Governmental Regulation Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 on
page 20.

ULTIA Handheld Solution. ULTIA, our wireless point-of-care solution, is approaching full release throughout the United States. This
product combines the power of The Medical Manager software s proven clinical and administrative systems with the convenience of mobile
handheld connectivity using a palm size handheld device, such as a Compaq® iPaq®. From anywhere in the office, healthcare providers can use
this wireless local area network, or LAN, device to access information stored within, or to enter data into, The Medical Manager system, giving
them instant access at the point-of-care to:

appointment schedules, hospital rounds information and clinical tasks needing the provider s attention;

a user-friendly electronic prescription writer, with integrated drug utilization review, or DUR, and formulary checking, which
electronically submits prescriptions to the patient s chosen pharmacy and, at the same time, adds prescription information directly to the
patient s electronic medical record in The Medical Manager software;

electronic lab ordering and reporting of results that can be viewed using ULTIA, available through The Medical Manager system in the
provider s office;

their patients electronic medical records, including demographic data, progress notes, medications, lab results, procedure histories and
other information and transcribed patient documentation;

a fully customized, online encounter form for capturing patient charges, which displays procedure and diagnosis codes in customized
checklists and automatically posts charge information to The Medical Manager system; and

the customized professional portal content of The Medical Manager Integrated WebMD Portal, as described below.

In addition, ULTIA provides a range of offsite functionality and can easily be used at hospitals and other remote locations. Using the
wireless LAN connection, up to ten days of hospital rounds and patient data can be downloaded to the handheld device. This information is then
accessible to the provider when he or she is working at a remote location. The provider can enter new data and capture patient charges, all of
which is then uploaded to The Medical Manager system when the provider returns to the office.

Physicians can also use ULTIA to digitally record dictation and then send the voice file electronically for transcription, reducing the number
of devices the physician has to carry and reducing turn-around time.

Intergy . Intergy is WebMD Medical Manager s newest product offering for the physician practice/clinical management market. Designed
from the ground up, Intergy combines a graphical user interface, or GUI, and a relational database environment with integrated clinical and
financial subsystems. Intergy has been designed to provide a user-friendly interface with data storage capacity that will accommodate the largest
of our installations. This product will incorporate the functionality of The Medical Manager software, including imaging, OmniChart, OmniDoc
and the ULTIA handheld solution.

The Intergy product is currently in controlled release for smaller practices and will begin limited rollout for larger practices in the second
half of 2002. We believe that, when Intergy moves into full release, it will comprise the majority of our new sales of practice management
systems. However, we intend to continue to develop and support The Medical Manager system following the release of Intergy.
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Medical Manager Integrated WebMD Portal. The Medical Manager Integrated WebMD Portal allows physicians whose offices use The
Medical Manager practice management system to remotely access, via the Internet through our professional portal, information contained in
their office s practice management system, including daily schedules and patient records and customized professional portal content. This remote
access feature enables physicians to view, in a secure manner, information residing on their office-based computer system from any personal
computer or other device with a connection to the Internet. Other important features include the ability to send and receive secure email
messages, the ability to connect with patients via a customized practice Web site, online CME management, and comprehensive healthcare
related content designed for healthcare providers. We plan to build on our successful deployment of the Integrated WebMD Portal by adding
functionality and improving usability. Planned enhancements to the system include additional capabilities to perform interactive functions such
as writing prescriptions and signing off on lab results and transcription.

Electronic Connectivity. The Medical Manager software supports, and can be integrated with, our WebMD Envoy transaction services, as
well as similar services from other connectivity providers, through Medical Manager Network Services. We market transaction services to
customers of The Medical Manager software under the Medical Manager Network Services brand, including electronic claims, claims status,
automated eligibility verification, electronic referral authorization/status, patient statements, remittances, patient payment processing, automated
eligibility verification and related services. Healthcare providers pay us fees for these transactions services, generally on a monthly subscription
basis or a per transaction basis.

Using The Medical Manager system with Medical Manager Network Services, providers have access to EDI functionality that is integrated
into their practice workflow. Integrated EDI allows providers and their staff to send and receive EDI transactions from within The Medical
Manager software. Using The Medical Manager system, providers can generate reports regarding electronically submitted claims that have been
accepted or rejected.

We believe that the HIPAA transaction standards rule will result in increased use of electronic submissions of claims and additional types of
transactions and will provide us the opportunity to increase usage of Medical Manager Network Services. We intend that Medical Manager
Network Service EDI transactions will be HIPAA-ready ahead of applicable deadlines. For additional information regarding HIPAA, see

Business Governmental Regulation Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 on page 20.

Other Practice Management Systems. Through our acquisitions of various businesses, we have also obtained ownership of other practice
management systems with smaller user bases. We currently maintain these other systems and may provide periodic updates to the users of these
systems.

Portal Services or WebMD Health

We offer a variety of online resources and services for consumers and healthcare professionals. WebMD Health includes the combined
portal services businesses of Healtheon, WebMD, Medscape, Medcast and OnHealth.

WebMD Health, our consumer portal, is located at www.my.webmd.com. WebMD Health helps people become better informed about
healthcare choices and assists them in playing an active role in managing their own health.

Medscape, our portal for physicians and allied health professionals, is located at www.medscape.com. At Medscape, physicians and other
healthcare professionals can access continuing medical education services, medical journals, textbooks and databases, specialty-focused
medical news and medical conference coverage, and opportunities to purchase other products and services.
Our editorial, design and production team includes board-certified physicians, Masters and Ph.D. level medical editors, award-winning
journalists, medical illustrators and community moderators. We have
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assembled scientific advisory boards consisting of experts from different specialties, who advise us on our content.

We believe that the user base of our portals represents an attractive audience to a variety of advertisers and sponsors who are interested in
influencing healthcare decisions. We are working with our advertisers and sponsors to develop innovative online programs that provide
demonstrable results and complement their offline education, marketing and customer service programs. These online programs are designed to
deliver on the promise of the Internet as an interactive medium, as opposed to merely trying to create awareness of a particular product or brand.

WebMD Health Consumer Portal. Consumer interest in convenient and reliable sources of general information on health and wellness
topics continues to grow. In addition, consumers increasingly seek to educate themselves about available treatment options for specific health
conditions or injuries. We believe that these trends are likely to continue, as consumers are asked to bear an increasingly large portion of their
healthcare expenditures as a result of changes in the design of the medical plans and prescription drug plans being offered by payers. Traditional
media have sought to meet this demand by introducing magazines focused on health and wellness and by increasing news coverage of
healthcare-related issues. The Internet allows us to offer consumers the resources they are looking for, with immediate access to searchable
information and dynamic interactive content.

WebMD Health provides access to health and wellness news and information, support communities, interactive tools and opportunities to
purchase health-related products and services. Consumers are also welcome to access content at our Medscape professional portal. We recently
began the integration of Medscape Health s content and tools into WebMD Health. The content and service offerings on WebMD Health include:

Original and Licensed Content. We offer proprietary, medically reviewed health and wellness news articles written daily by our staff of
journalists. We also offer searchable access to a library of health and wellness articles, reference information and interactive presentations,
some of which we own and some of which we have licensed from others. Our articles and other content cover various health-related topics,
including: specific diseases and chronic health conditions, medical tests, pregnancy and parenting, diet and nutrition, fitness and sports
medicine, and sexuality and relationships.

Sponsored Content. We also provide consumers with access to content sponsored by other companies, including pharmaceutical
manufacturers, medical device companies, health plans and healthcare consumer products and services companies. This content is
identified as sponsored so our users will not confuse it with our other content.

Sponsors choose our portals as a means of distributing educational materials and promotional programs because our user base
represents a large audience of health-involved consumers.

We also attract sponsors by demonstrating that the types of interactions available through the Internet provide a useful
complement to their existing offline promotional, educational and customer service efforts.

Membership. Consumers can choose to become members of WebMD Health, which allows them to create a personalized home page,
tailored to their interests. Members can also select from more than 20 different e-mail newsletters on health-related topics or specific
conditions and have access to our communities and events, as described below.

Communities. Our communities allow our members to participate in real-time discussions in our chat rooms and on our message boards.
Members share experiences and exchange information with other members who share their health condition or concern.

Events. Our events include one-time programs and series in which experts make presentations and answer questions on specific
health-related topics. Members can also use our Ask the Experts
14
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service to post their health questions for experts. Our events also include WebMD University programs, which are four week courses, live
moderated by experts, on specific subjects. WebMD University programs have included: 4 Weeks to an Easier Pregnancy, 4 Weeks to a
Healthier Heart and 4 Weeks to Breathe Free.

Interactive Personal Health Management Tools and Other Features. We provide access to interactive calculators, quizzes and slide shows

to assess or demonstrate health topics, including an immunization planner, health risk appraisal, diet and fitness journal, body mass index,

calorie counter and target heart rate calculator. WebMD Health also has features that allow consumers to search for a physician or clinic in

their area or for a clinical trial program. We also offer MyHealthRecord, which allows members to establish and maintain a private record

of their family s health in a single, secure place and to print out health reports and medical emergency information cards for their family.

Medscape Professional Portal. Medscape is designed to meet the needs of medical professionals in a personalized and easy-to-use manner.

We organize our professional information by medical specialty area, such as oncology and cardiology, to make it easier for our members to
access the information most relevant to them. Our extensive and up-to-date medical content and easy-to-use search capabilities assist medical
professionals in keeping abreast of medical advances and obtaining fast, accurate answers to medical questions online. In addition, physicians
and their office staffs can access tools for creating customized practice Web sites and opportunities to purchase other products and services.
There are no membership fees and no general usage charges for the site; however, we do charge usage or subscription fees for some premium
content and services.

Our Medscape content and service offerings are generally offered by specialty and include:

Medical News. We provide original, daily medical news stories written by our staff of journalists and reviewed by our staff of physicians.
We also provide daily synopses of medical stories in mass media, including items from major newspapers and national television
networks, together with links back to the original source and to further information on Medscape or WebMD Health.

Medical Library. We supplement our extensive original content with one of the Web s largest collections of peer-reviewed, full-text
medical articles. We also provide monthly summaries of articles published in major peer-reviewed journals a time-saving resource for
physicians. Our medical reference applications include:

a custom drug information database
a medical dictionary
an easy-to-use interface to MEDLINE, a database of abstracts of medical journals

proprietary medical illustrations that can be used by physicians as an important visual aid in communicating information to
patients.

Continuing Medical Education. Over 30 states and many medical societies require physicians and selected other medical professionals to
certify annually that they have accumulated a minimum number of CME hours to maintain licensure or membership. We offer a selection
of free, regularly updated CME activities for physicians, registered nurses, pharmacists and other healthcare professionals, including
original programs and online multimedia adaptations of live events. We also provide services that track CME credits accumulated through
our site for our users.

The majority of our CME activities have been planned and implemented in accordance with the Essential Areas and Policies
of the Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education, or ACCME, which oversee providers of CME credit, and
have been produced in collaboration with ACCME-accredited CME providers.

Medscape awarded over 200,000 CME credit hours last year (an increase of approximately 100% over the prior year) to
physicians and other health professionals
15
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registered on Medscape. We believe that we are one of the leading providers of online continuing medical education programs
for healthcare professionals.

Medical Conference Coverage. We provide summaries of key data and presentations from major medical meetings. This benefits our
members who were unable to attend, as well as the sponsors of the conferences by increasing the size of the audience.

Newsletters. Members receive MedPulse®, our weekly e-mail newsletter, which is published in over 25 specialty-specific editions.

Tools for Creating Customized Web Sites. We offer our members registered as physicians the opportunity to create home pages for their
medical practices that can be accessed by their patients and the general public. In addition to details about their practice, including office
address, phone number, medical specialty, types of insurance accepted, hospital affiliations and languages spoken, our physician Web sites
permit a physician to offer links to health information from Medscape and WebMD Health.

Ask-the-Expert. Our Ask-the-Expert feature provides physician members with access to leading experts to advise them on best practices in
patient care. Cases and questions are discussed by a panel of experts and the responses are available to the entire community of physician
members. The accumulated questions and answers form a unique searchable repository of clinical advice and information. This feature
reflects our broader strategy of creating a community of physicians that can share information with each other and with experts in order to
improve the dissemination of medical information and the quality of patient care.

Remote Access Capabilities. We provide remote access capabilities that allow physicians whose offices use The Medical Manager practice
management system to remotely access, via the Internet, information contained in their office s practice management system through our

professional portal. See Business Physician Services or WebMD Medical Manager Medical Manager Integrated WebMD Portal on
page 13. We intend to offer this capability for other practice management systems in the future.

Non-Medical Content. We provide an array of non-medical content on subjects of interest to medical professionals, including personal
finance features and practice management features. Members can also learn about the developments in managed care in a special Managed
Care topic area.

To utilize all of Medscape s features, users must register as members. This enables us to deliver targeted medical content based on our
members registration profiles. The registration process enables professional members to choose a home page tailored to their medical specialty
or interest. For example, a member registered as a cardiologist is automatically directed to Medscape Cardiology, rather than a more generic
home page. Every member, however, regardless of medical specialty or professional status, has access to the full suite of original and licensed
content through a uniform, easy-to-use interface.

Medical Reference Services. These services include the medical textbooks WebMD Scientific American Medicine and ACS Surgery:
Principles and Practice. Our editors and authors for these texts are internationally recognized experts and both texts are considered standards in
their fields, with WebMD Scientific American Medicine celebrating its 25th anniversary this year. WebMD Scientific American Medicine was
the first continuously updated medical reference, the first CD-ROM textbook and the first online textbook. ACS Surgery is the only reference
work sponsored by the American College of Surgeons and the only comprehensive online surgical reference.

International. WebMD Health operates principally in the United States. However, we also provide content to a small network of partners in
Europe, Asia and the Americas. The content is marketed on a co-branded basis using our Medscape brand and the local partner s brand. Our
international operations are structured so that our partners are responsible for translation, marketing and sales to local advertisers and sponsors,
while we contribute content. In return, we receive a share of the revenues generated by these
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operations. This structure allows us to increase the scope of our distribution, while limiting the cost of doing so. We believe that an international
network of these partnerships, when more fully developed, will provide us with a strategic advantage in marketing programs to advertisers and
sponsors who distribute their products internationally, including pharmaceutical companies and medical device manufacturers.

We intend to continue to try to expand our international operations and to continue to use licensing and partnership transactions in order to
try to limit the incremental costs to us of such expansion. While the focus of our international operations has been on providing content for
physicians and allied healthcare professionals, we expect our consumer licensing outside of the United States to grow in importance.

Revenue Opportunities. Our portals generate revenues from multiple sources, including:

Advertising. We sell advertising on our portals and on the online and offline properties of our strategic partners. Advertisers on our portals
can target very specific demographic groups, condition-specific groups or specialty-specific groups, measure the effectiveness of
advertising campaigns and quickly revise them in response to the prompt feedback allowed by the Internet.

Sponsorships. Companies can sponsor specific pages or sections of our portals and specific events, programs and newsletters, all of which
are clearly labeled as sourced from or sponsored by the specific sponsor. General sponsorships are sold for a longer term than online
advertising placements and may be sold based on duration, portion of our Web sites sponsored, number of impressions delivered and other
factors.

Value-Based Programs. We also sell value-based programs to sponsors and advertisers, including market research, integrated sampling
and coupons, personalized newsletters, health management tools and continuing medical education. In these programs, our compensation
may be based on numbers of specified actions taken by users, including program enrollments, e-mail subscriptions, completion of surveys,
printing of lists of questions to ask a doctor and responses to trial incentive programs.

Content Syndication and Distribution. We distribute our content and services to leading general consumer Internet portals and media
distribution partners, including MSN, AOL and News Corporation. We also provide our content and services to health plans and other
healthcare partners Web sites for use by their affiliated physicians and consumers.
We believe that our advertising, sponsorship and syndication relationships with participants in the healthcare industry also foster our ability
to develop broader relationships that can assist us in our efforts to develop, deploy and increase utilization levels of our other products and
services.

Sales and Marketing

WebMD Envoy. WebMD Envoy s primary sales and marketing strategy focuses on promoting its transaction services to organizations that
have relationships with or access to a large number of providers, such as practice management systems vendors, hospital information systems
vendors, practice management companies and other clearinghouses. In certain cases, we agree to pay a sales commission based on transaction
volume to these organizations as an inducement to use WebMD Envoy as the clearinghouse for the transactions made through their systems or
by providers with which they have relationships.

We also market our transaction services directly to healthcare payers, as well as to small and large physician practices, dentists, hospitals
and other healthcare providers. In addition, WebMD Envoy works closely with national and regional practice management system vendors to
develop and co-market integrated solutions to providers.

In the pharmacy transactions area, WebMD Envoy has established relationships with large retail pharmacy chains and pharmacy software
vendors.

WebMD Envoy s sales and marketing efforts are conducted by approximately 335 sales, marketing and account management personnel
located throughout the United States.
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WebMD Medical Manager. WebMD Medical Manager markets and distributes physician practice management systems, as well as
ancillary products and services, nationally through a direct sales organization consisting of over 300 sales and marketing personnel, who are also
supported by over 825 field technicians and training and support personnel, and through our network of independent dealers and resellers. This
distribution effort is responsible for sales to new clients, ranging in size from sole practitioners to enterprise-wide clients, and follow-up sales of
upgrades, enhancements and additional products and services to existing clients. Medical Manager Network Services is marketed through our
existing distribution channels, supplemented by a dedicated team of Network Services specialists located throughout the United States.

Since February 1997, we have acquired a significant number of our independent dealers and resellers and we expect to continue to make
these acquisitions in the future. We believe that the acquisition of independent dealers and resellers enables us to establish direct relationships
with end users of our software products, thereby enhancing our ability to sell additional products and services to these end users.

WebMD Health. WebMD Health has a direct sales organization of over 50 sales and marketing personnel, many of whom have significant
experience in selling advertising and sponsorships to pharmaceutical companies, health plans and other healthcare and consumer companies and
their advertising agencies. Our sales and marketing personnel represent the combined portal assets of WebMD Health to sponsors as the
WebMD Medscape Health Network.

We seek to attract traffic and new members to WebMD Health through a variety of methods, including online and offline media campaigns.
Online we work with a broad range of third party sites to attract and register qualified members. Offline we use television and other media
available through our relationship with News Corporation to drive traffic to the site. The primary focus of our media campaigns has been
member registration. As a result, member registration grew substantially in 2001.

We seek to attract traffic and new members to Medscape through a variety of methods, including advertising on other Internet sites and in
medical journals, pharmaceutical and other healthcare publications and other targeted publications. We also promote Medscape at industry
conferences, trade shows and medical meetings and by using direct mail.

Development and Engineering

We have developed internally and acquired through acquisitions our products and services. As of December 31, 2001, we employed
approximately 500 people in development and engineering. Our development and engineering expense totaled $39.6 million in 2001,
$58.8 million in 2000 and $29.7 million in 1999.

The markets for some of our products and services are characterized by rapid change and technological advances. Our future success will
depend, in part, upon our ability to enhance our existing products and services, to respond effectively to technological changes, and to introduce
new and newly integrated applications and technologies that address the changing needs of our customers. Accordingly, we intend to continue to
make investments in development and engineering and to recruit and hire experienced development personnel. However, we cannot provide
assurance that we will be able to successfully complete the development of new products or services, enhancements to existing products or
services or the migration of products and services to new platforms. Further, there can be no assurance that products or technologies developed
by others will not adversely affect our competitive position or render our products, services or technologies noncompetitive or obsolete.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are intensely competitive, continually evolving and, in some cases, subject to rapid technological change.
We have many competitors, including:

healthcare information system vendors and support providers, including physician practice management system vendors and support
providers;
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transaction processing companies, including those providing EDI and/or Internet-based services and those providing services through other
means, such as paper and fax;

large information technology consulting service providers;
online services, portals or Web sites targeted to the healthcare industry, healthcare consumers and/or physicians generally;

consortiums of health insurance companies and of pharmacy benefit management companies that have announced that they are developing
electronic transaction services for use by their members and other potential customers;

publishers and distributors of traditional offline media, including those targeted to healthcare professionals, many of which have
established or may establish their own Web sites or partner with other Web sites;

general purpose consumer online services and portals and other high-traffic Web sites that provide access to healthcare-related content and
services;

public sector and non-profit Web sites that provide healthcare information without advertising or commercial sponsorships; and

vendors of healthcare information, products and services distributed through other means, including direct sales, mail and fax messaging.

We also compete, in some cases, with alliances formed by the above competitors, including alliances that are intended to allow the
participants to pursue a strategy similar to our strategy of integrating transaction processing capabilities and portal services with physician
practice management systems. Major software, hardware and information systems companies, both with and without healthcare companies as
their partners, offer or have announced their intention to offer products or services that are competitive with some of our solutions, including
wireless handheld solutions that will compete with ULTIA, our handheld solution.

In addition, there can be no assurance that healthcare payers and providers will continue to use WebMD and other independent companies
to transmit healthcare transactions. Some of our existing payer and provider customers and some of our strategic partners may compete with us
or plan to do so or belong to alliances that compete with us or plan to do so. For example, some payers currently offer electronic data
transmission services to healthcare providers that establish a direct link between the provider and payer, bypassing third party EDI service
providers such as WebMD Envoy. Any significant increase in the utilization of direct links between healthcare providers and payers could have
a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to maintain our existing
links to payers or develop new connections on satisfactory terms, if at all.

WebMD Health faces competition both in attracting members and visitor traffic and in generating revenue from advertisers, sponsors and
others. We compete with numerous companies and organizations for the attention of healthcare professionals and consumers including
traditional offline media such as network and cable television, print journals, conferences, continuing medical education programs and symposia.
We also face significant competition from online information resources. There are thousands of healthcare-related Web sites on the Internet. In
addition, there are many companies that provide non-Internet based marketing and advertising services to the healthcare industry. These
competitors include advertising agencies, consulting firms, marketing and communications companies and contract sales and marketing
organizations. In addition, to the extent that we are successful in increasing revenue from our portals, competition for our portals audience and
the potential sources of revenue are likely to increase.

Many of our competitors have greater financial, technical, product development, marketing and other resources than we do. These
organizations may be better known than we are and have more customers than we do. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to
compete successfully against these organizations or any alliances they have formed or may form.
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Government Regulation

The healthcare industry is highly regulated and is subject to changing political, regulatory and other influences. These factors affect the
purchasing practices and operations of healthcare organizations as well as the behavior and attitudes of consumers. Federal and state legislatures
and agencies periodically consider programs to reform or revise the United States healthcare system. These programs may contain proposals to
increase governmental involvement in healthcare, lower reimbursement rates or otherwise change the environment in which healthcare industry
participants operate. Healthcare industry participants may respond by reducing their investments or postponing investment decisions, including
investments in our products and services. We are unable to predict future proposals with any certainty or to predict the effect they would have on
our businesses.

Existing laws and regulations also could create liability, cause us to incur additional cost and restrict our operations. Many healthcare laws
are complex, applied broadly and subject to interpretation by courts and other governmental authorities. In addition, many existing healthcare
laws and regulations, when enacted, did not anticipate the methods of healthcare e-commerce and other products and services that we provide.
However, these laws and regulations may nonetheless be applied to our products and services. Our failure, or the failure of our business partners,
to accurately anticipate the application of these healthcare laws and regulations, or other failure to comply, could create liability for us, result in
adverse publicity and negatively affect our businesses.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996

General. Under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, Congress mandated a package of interlocking
administrative simplification rules to establish standards and requirements for the electronic transmission of certain health information. As more
fully described below, portions of these rules apply to our operations and create both risks to and opportunities for our businesses.

Five of these rules were published in proposed form in 1998, with two of the five published in final form. The two rules published in final
form are Standards for Electronic Transactions, published August 17, 2000, and Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, published December 28, 2000. These rules took effect on October 16, 2000 and April 14, 2001, respectively, with compliance by
healthcare providers, healthcare clearinghouses and large health plans originally required two years following the respective effective dates.
Small health plans are given an additional year to comply. On December 27, 2001, President Bush signed into law H.R. 3323, the Administrative
Simplification Compliance Act (now known as Public Law 107-105). This law provides for a one-year extension, to October 16, 2003, of the
date for complying with the HIPAA standard transactions and code set requirements for any covered entity that submits to the Secretary of
Health and Human Services a plan of how the entity will come into compliance with the requirements by the new deadline.

HIPAA Transaction Standards. The HIPAA Standards for Electronic Transactions rule is commonly referred to as the transaction standards
rule. This rule establishes format and data content standards for eight of the most common healthcare transactions, using technical standards
promulgated by recognized standards publishing organizations. These transactions include healthcare claims, enrollment, payment and
eligibility. The intent of the rule was to promulgate new standards, under which any party transmitting or receiving any of these eight healthcare
transactions electronically would send and receive data in a single format, rather than the large number of different data formats currently used.
The transaction standards are applicable to that portion of our business involving the processing of healthcare transactions among physicians,
payers, patients and other healthcare industry participants. The transaction standards also are applicable to our customers and to our relationships
with those customers.

We believe that the intent of the HIPAA transaction standards rule represents sound business practice and that the rule could lead to
improvements in the efficiency of healthcare administration. At WebMD, we have the continuing goal of increasing uniformity, efficiency and
speed of electronic medical information interchange. HIPAA begins a new era of cooperation among all generators and users of
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electronic medical information. We expect that HIPAA will act as a catalyst to expand usage, by payers and providers, of a broader group of
medical EDI transactions.

In addition, we believe that we are well-positioned to assist payers, providers and other healthcare participants in their efforts to comply
with the HIPAA transaction standards and in their management of the period during which they and others are migrating to compliance. See
Business Transaction Services or WebMD Envoy HIPAA on page 8. However, the effect of the HIPAA transaction standards rule on our
business is difficult to predict and there can be no assurances that we will adequately address the business risks created by the HIPAA
transaction standards rule and its implementation or that we will be able to take advantage of any resulting business opportunities. In addition,
we are unable to predict what changes to the transaction standards rule will be made in the future or how those changes could affect our
business.

HIPAA Privacy Standards. The HIPAA Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information rule is commonly referred to
as the privacy standards rule. This rule establishes a set of basic national privacy standards and fair information practices for the protection by
health plans, healthcare clearinghouses, healthcare providers and their business associates of individually identifiable health information. This
rule became effective on April 14, 2001 and the compliance date for most entities is April 14, 2003. On March 21, 2002, the United States
Department of Health and Human Services issued a notice of proposed rulemaking which makes several critical modifications to the regulation.
After a 30-day comment period that is to begin on March 27, 2002, Secretary Thompson plans to finalize the regulation, including possible
further modifications before the compliance date of April 14, 2003. The privacy standards rule applies to the portions of our business that
process healthcare transactions and provide technical services to other participants in the healthcare industry. This rule provides for civil and
criminal liability for its breach and requires us, our customers and our partners to use health information in a highly restricted manner, to
establish policies and procedures to safeguard the information, to obtain individual authorizations for some activities, and to provide certain
access rights to individuals. This rule may require us to incur significant costs to change our products and services, may restrict the manner in
which we transmit and use the information, and may adversely affect our ability to generate revenue from the provision of de-identified
information to third parties. The effect of the HIPAA privacy standards rule on our business is difficult to predict and there can be no assurances
that we will adequately address the business risks created by the privacy standards rule and its implementation or that we will be able to take
advantage of any resulting business opportunities. In addition, we are unable to predict what changes to the privacy standards rule will be made
in the future or how those changes could affect our business.

Other Restrictions Regarding Confidentiality and Privacy of Patient Information

Numerous state and federal laws other than HIPAA govern the collection, dissemination, use, access to and confidentiality of patient health
information. Many states are considering new laws and regulations that further protect the confidentiality of medical records or medical
information. These state laws are not in most cases preempted by the HIPAA privacy standard and may be subject to interpretation by various
courts and other governmental authorities, thus creating potentially complex compliance issues for us and our customers and strategic partners.
Definitions in the various state and federal laws concerning what constitutes individually identifiable data sometimes differ and sometimes are
not provided, creating further complexity. In addition, determining whether data has been sufficiently de-identified may require complex factual
and statistical analyses. The HIPAA privacy standards rule contains a restrictive definition of de-identified information, which is information
that is not individually identifiable, that could create a new standard of care for the industry. These other privacy laws at a state or federal level,
or new interpretations of these laws, could create liability for us, could impose additional operational requirements on our business, could affect
the manner in which we use and transmit patient information and could increase our cost of doing business. In addition, parties may also have
contractual rights that provide additional limits on our collection, dissemination, use, access to and confidentiality of patient health information.
Claims of privacy rights or contractual breaches, even if we are not found liable, could be expensive and time-consuming to defend and could
result in adverse publicity that could harm our business.
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Other Regulation of Transaction Services

Other state and federal statutes and regulations governing transmission of healthcare information may affect our operations. For example,
Medicaid rules require some processing services and eligibility verification to be maintained as separate and distinct operations. We carefully
review our practices with regulatory experts in an effort to ensure that we are in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws. These
laws, though, are complex and changing, and the courts and other governmental authorities may take positions that are inconsistent with our
practices.

International Data Regulation

Other countries also have, or are developing, their own laws governing the collection, use, storage and dissemination of personal
information or patient data. These laws could create liability for our international operations, impose additional operations requirements or
restrictions on our business, affect the manner in which we use or transmit data and increase our cost of doing business.

Consumer Protection Regulation

The Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, and many state attorneys general are applying federal and state consumer protection laws to
require that the online collection, use and dissemination of data, and the presentation of Web site content, comply with certain standards for
notice, choice, security and access. Courts may also adopt these developing standards. In many cases, the specific limitations regarding these
standards are subject to interpretation by courts and other governmental authorities. We believe that we are in compliance with these consumer
protection standards, but a determination by a state or federal agency or court that any of our practices do not meet these standards could result
in liability and adversely affect our business. New interpretations of these standards could also require us to incur additional costs and restrict
our business operations.

In addition, several foreign governments have regulations dealing with the collection and use of personal information obtained from their
citizens. Those governments may attempt to apply such laws extra-territorially or through treaties or other arrangements with U.S. governmental
entities. We might unintentionally violate such laws, such laws may be modified and new laws may be enacted in the future. Any such
developments (or developments stemming from enactment or modification of other laws) or the failure to accurately anticipate the application or
interpretation of these laws could create liability to us, result in adverse publicity and negatively affect our businesses.

Regulation of Healthcare Relationships

There are federal and state laws that govern patient referrals, physician financial relationships and inducements to beneficiaries of federal
healthcare programs. The federal anti-kickback law prohibits any person or entity from offering, paying, soliciting or receiving anything of
value, directly or indirectly, for the referral of patients covered by Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs or the leasing,
purchasing, ordering or arranging for or recommending the lease, purchase or order of any item, good, facility or service covered by these
programs. The anti-kickback law is broad and may apply to some of our activities or our relationships with our customers, advertisers or
strategic partners. Penalties for violating the anti-kickback law include imprisonment, fines and exclusion from participating, directly or
indirectly, in Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs. Many states also have similar anti-kickback laws that are not
necessarily limited to items or services for which payment is made by a federal healthcare program. We carefully review our practices with
regulatory experts in an effort to ensure that we comply with all applicable laws. However, the laws in this area are both broad and vague and it
is often difficult or impossible to determine precisely how the laws will be applied, particularly to new services similar to ours. Any
determination by a state or federal regulatory agency that any of our practices violate any of these laws could subject us to civil or criminal
penalties and require us to change or terminate some portions of our business.
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We currently provide billing services to healthcare providers and, therefore, may be subject to state and federal laws that govern the
submission of claims for medical expense reimbursement. These laws generally prohibit an individual or entity from knowingly presenting or
causing to be presented a claim for payment from Medicare, Medicaid or other third party payers that is false or fraudulent, or is for an item or
service that was not provided as claimed. These laws also provide civil and criminal penalties for noncompliance, and can be enforced by
individuals through qui tam actions. We have designed our current transaction services and will design any future services to place the
responsibility for compliance with these laws on provider customers. However, we cannot guarantee that state and federal agencies will regard
billing errors processed by us as inadvertent and not in violation of these laws. In addition, changes in current healthcare financing and
reimbursement systems could cause us to make unplanned modifications of products or services, or result in delays or cancellations of orders or
in the revocation of endorsement of our products and services by healthcare participants.

Regulation of Medical Devices

The Food and Drug Administration, or the FDA, has jurisdiction under the 1976 Medical Device Amendments to the Federal Food, Drug
and Cosmetic Act, or the FDA Act, to regulate computer products and software as medical devices if they are intended for use in the diagnosis,
cure, mitigation, treatment or prevention of disease in humans.

Our DIMDX System is considered by the FDA to be a medical image management device regulated under the FDA Act. Prior to marketing
it, we were required to obtain  510(k) clearance from the FDA by submitting a premarket notification demonstrating that thg,DB¥istem is
substantially equivalent in intended use and in safety and effectiveness to a previously 510(k) cleared device. The FDA granted 510(k) clearance
to the DIM;, System on August 25, 2000.

The DIMDX System is subject to numerous postmarket regulatory requirements. These include: the Quality System Regulation, which
requires manufacturers to follow design, testing, control, documentation and other quality assurance procedures during the manufacturing
process; labeling regulations; the FDA s general prohibition against promoting products for unapproved or off-label uses; and the Medical Device
Reporting regulation, which requires that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may have caused or contributed to a death or serious
injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a death or serious injury if it were to recur. We are subject to inspection
and marketing surveillance by the FDA to determine our compliance with regulatory requirements. If the FDA finds that we have failed to
comply, it can institute a wide variety of civil and criminal enforcement actions and sanctions.

Under the FDA s regulations, any modification of the DIM System that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would
constitute a major change in its intended use, requires a new 5 10(k) clearance or approval of a premarket application, or PMA, which requires
proof of the safety and effectiveness of a device to the FDA s satisfaction. The 510(k) clearance process typically takes three to twelve months,
although it can last longer. The PMA approval process is even more time consuming, costly, and uncertain. It typically takes one to two years or
longer.

We have made modifications to the DIM__ System since clearance that we believe do not require new 510(k) clearance. The FDA requires
each manufacturer to make the determination 1in the first instance as to whether the modification requires a new 510(k) clearance or PMA
approval, but the FDA can review such decisions. If the FDA disagrees with our decisions, it may retroactively require new 510(k) clearance or
PMA approval. The FDA also can require us to cease marketing and/or recall the modified device until 510(k) clearance or PMA approval is
obtained.

Although the FDA regulates many computer products and software as medical devices, the FDA has a long-standing draft software policy
exempting such products from active regulation if they are decision support systems intended to involve competent human intervention before
any impact on human health occurs (in other words, where clinical judgment and experience can be used to check, interpret and potentially
challenge a system s output). Except for the cleared DIV, System, we believe that, under the
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draft software policy, The Medical Manager practice management system is exempt from active regulation and does not, among other things,
require a 510(k) clearance or PMA approval.

We have created an interface between The Medical Manager practice management system and the image device and are marketing the
interface and the image device as the DIM,, System. We believe that the addition of our practice management system to the image device does
not require a new 510(k) clearance or PMA approval.

The ULTIA product will access The Medical Manager practice management system and make it available in a wireless handheld format,
including allowing access to the medical images stored in the DIM,, System. We believe that the ULTIA product s display of the practice
management system will not be subject to active FDA regulation. Because any displayed medical images would not be intended for diagnostic
use, we believe that ULTIA s ability to access such medical images would not subject it to a 510(k) clearance requirement. We cannot assure
you, however, that the FDA would agree with either of these conclusions. If the FDA does not agree, we may be required to obtain 510(k)
clearance or PMA approval for ULTIA.

The FDA s draft software policy has been under review for several years, and there is a risk that The Medical Manager software or other of
our software or hardware components could in the future become subject to some or all of the medical device regulation requirements. In
addition, the FDA may take the position that other products and services we offer, such as ULTIA, are subject to FDA regulation or we may
expand our services in the future to areas that subject us to FDA regulation.

Except with respect to WebMD Medical Manager and Porex, we have no experience in complying with FDA medical device regulations.
We believe that additional FDA regulations, if applicable to us, may be time consuming, burdensome and expensive to comply with and could
delay our introduction of new products or services.

FDA and FTC Regulation of Advertising

The FDA and the FTC regulate the form, content and dissemination of labeling, advertising and promotional materials, including
direct-to-consumer prescription drug and medical device advertising, prepared by, or for, pharmaceutical or medical device companies. The FTC
regulates over-the-counter drug advertising and, in some cases, medical device advertising, as well as general product or service advertising.
Generally, based on FDA requirements, regulated companies must limit their advertising and promotional materials to discussions of
FDA-approved claims. In limited circumstances, regulated companies may disseminate non-promotional scientific information regarding
products or claims not yet approved by the FDA. Any information that promotes the use of pharmaceutical products or medical devices that is
put on our Web site is subject to the full array of the FDA and FTC requirements and enforcement actions and any information regarding other
products and services is subject to FTC requirements. Areas of our Web site that we believe would be the primary focus of the FDA and FTC
include banner advertisements, sponsorship links, and any educational programs that discuss use of an FDA-regulated product or that lack
editorial independence from the influence of sponsoring pharmaceutical or medical device companies. Television broadcast advertisements by
WebMD may also be subject to FTC regulation and FDA regulation depending on the content. The FDA and the FTC place the principal burden
of compliance with advertising and promotional regulations on the company that advertises on our Web site to make truthful, substantiated
claims. If the FDA or the FTC finds that any information on our Web site violates FDA or FTC regulations, they may take regulatory or judicial
action against us or the advertiser or sponsor of that information.

Any increase in FDA regulation of the Internet or other media for direct-to-consumer advertisements of prescription drugs could make it
more difficult for WebMD Health to obtain advertising and sponsorship revenue. In the last 15 years, the FDA has gradually relaxed its formerly
restrictive policies on direct-to-consumer advertising of prescription drugs. Companies can now advertise prescription drugs for serious
conditions to consumers in any medium. However, physician groups and others have criticized the FDA s current policies, and have called for
restrictions on any advertising of prescription drugs to
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consumers. These critics point to both public health concerns and to the laws of many other countries that make direct-to-consumer advertising
of prescription drugs a criminal offense. In response to these critics, the FDA or the FTC may alter its present policies on the direct-to-consumer
advertising of prescription drugs or medical devices in a way that would materially reduce our advertising and sponsorship revenues.

Medical Professional Regulation

The practice of most healthcare professions requires licensing under applicable state law. In addition, the laws in some states prohibit
business entities from practicing medicine, which is referred to as the prohibition against the corporate practice of medicine. We do not believe
that we engage in the practice of medicine and we have attempted to structure our Web site, strategic relationships and other operations to avoid
violating these state licensing and professional practice laws. A state, however, may determine that some portion of our business violates these
laws and may seek to have us discontinue those portions or subject us to penalties or licensure requirements. We provide Web site capabilities
for our physician customers. Many states regulate the ability of medical professionals to advertise or maintain referral services. We do not
represent that a physician s use of our Web site will comply with these or other state laws regulating professional practice and we do not monitor
or control the content that physicians post on their individual practice Web sites using our Web site application. It is possible a state or a court
may determine we are responsible for any non-compliance with these laws, which could affect our ability to offer this service to our customers.
We employ and contract with physicians who provide only medical information to consumers, and we have no intention to provide medical care
or advice. Any determination that we are a healthcare provider and acted improperly as a healthcare provider may result in liability to us.

Children s Online Privacy Protection Act

The Children s Online Privacy Protection Act, or COPPA, extends to operators of commercial Web sites and online services directed to U.S.
children under the age of 13 that collect personal information from children, and operators of general audience sites with actual knowledge that
they are collecting information from U.S. children under 13. WebMD s sites are not directed at children and its general audience site, WebMD
Health, states that no one under the applicable age is entitled to use the site. In addition, WebMD Health employs a kick-out procedure whereby
anyone identifying themselves as being under the age of 13 during the registration process is not allowed to register for the site s member only
services, such as message boards and live chat events. COPPA, however, is a relatively new law, can be applied broadly and is subject to
interpretation by courts and other governmental authorities. The failure to accurately anticipate the application or interpretation of this law could
create liability to us, result in adverse publicity and negatively affect our business.

Intellectual Property

We rely upon a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark laws, license agreements, confidentiality procedures, employee
and client nondisclosure agreements and technical measures to protect our intellectual property.

We use several trademarks in the United States and internationally, including WebMD®, Web-MD®, WebMD Health®, The Medical
Manager®, Envoy®, and Medscape®. Each of those marks has been registered in the United States, and we have an additional United States
application for WebMD Health pending. We have registered WebMD in numerous international jurisdictions; however, some of our
international applications for WebMD are still pending. We use numerous other registered and unregistered trademarks and service marks for
our various products and services in the United States and internationally. In jurisdictions where trademark rights are acquired by the first to
register the mark with the relevant governmental authority or where common law rights are acquired by being the first entity to adopt, use and
continue to use a particular mark in connection with particular goods or services, we may be unable to obtain superior trademark rights. In
addition to our trademark registrations and applications, we have registered the domain names webmd.com , my.webmd.com and medscape.com
and
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numerous other domain names that either are or may be relevant to conducting our business. Our inability to protect our marks and domain
names adequately could have a material adverse effect on our business and hurt us in establishing and maintaining our brand.

We also rely on a variety of intellectual property rights that we license from third parties, including our Internet server software and
healthcare content used on our WebMD.com Web site, as well as various products incorporated into our physician practice management
systems. These third party licenses may not continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms. Our loss of or inability to maintain
or obtain upgrades to any of these licenses could significantly harm us. In addition, because we license a majority of our content from third
parties, we may be exposed to copyright infringement actions if these parties are subject to claims regarding the origin and ownership of licensed
content.

The steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate, and we may not be able to secure trademark or service mark
registrations for marks in the United States or in foreign countries. Third parties may infringe upon or misappropriate our copyrights,
trademarks, service marks and similar proprietary rights. In addition, effective copyright and trademark protection may be unavailable or limited
in many foreign countries, and the global nature of the Internet makes it impossible to control the ultimate destination of our services. It is
possible that competitors or others will adopt product or service names similar to our names, which could impede our efforts to build brand
identity and possibly lead to customer confusion. Moreover, because domain names derive value from the individual s ability to remember such
names, our domain name will lose its value if, for example, users begin to rely on mechanisms other than domain names to access online
resources. Our inability to protect our marks and domain names adequately would hurt our ability to establish and maintain our brands. In the
future, litigation may be necessary to enforce and protect our trade secrets, copyrights and other intellectual property rights. Litigation would
divert management resources and be expensive and may not effectively protect our intellectual property.

Substantial litigation regarding intellectual property rights exists in the software industry, and we expect that software products may be
increasingly subject to third party infringement claims as the number of competitors in our industry grows and the functionality of products
overlaps. Although we believe that our products do not infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, we cannot provide assurance that
such a claim will not be asserted against us in the future, or that a license or similar agreement will be available on reasonable terms in the event
of an unfavorable ruling on any such claim.

We have several patents covering our software technology. Due to the nature of our application software, we believe that patent protection
is less significant than our ability to further develop, enhance and modify our current services and products. However, any infringement or
misappropriation of our proprietary software and databases could disadvantage us in our efforts to attract and retain customers in a highly
competitive market and could cause us to lose revenue or incur substantial litigation expense. Moreover, in recent years, there have been a large
number of patents issued in general and numerous patents issued related to Internet business methods. While we are unaware of any patent that
would impact our ability to conduct our business, defense of a patent infringement claim against us could divert management and monetary
resources, and an adverse judgment in any such matter may negatively impact our ability to conduct our business in the manner we desire.

Employees
As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately 4,500 employees, excluding Porex employees.

Disposition of Plastics and Filtration Technologies Business

Our plastics and filtration technologies business manufactures and distributes porous and solid plastic components and products used in life
sciences, healthcare, industrial and consumer applications. As we announced on September 28, 2000, our Board of Directors approved
management s plan to dispose of this business, which includes Porex Corporation and related companies. We acquired these companies in our
merger with Medical Manager on September 12, 2000 and we refer to this business as Porex.
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The proposed disposition of Porex has taken longer than originally expected. We determined not to accept any of the offers made by

potential buyers because we believed that the offers did not reflect the value of the business. We plan to continue to explore various divestiture
alternatives for this business. The expected net proceeds and the cash flows of Porex until sold were initially allocated to assets held for sale in
the allocation of the Medical Manager purchase price and were included as a single line item in current assets as provided by the consensus
reached by Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting Standards Board on Issue No. 87-11, Allocation of Purchase Price to Assets
to be Sold, referred to as EITF 87-11. As the divestiture of Porex was not completed within the one-year time period allotted by EITF 87-11, we
now record the results of operations of Porex in the statement of operations as a discontinued operation in accordance with EITF 90-6,

Accounting for Certain Events Not Addressed in Issue No. 87-11 Relating to an Acquired Operating Unit to be Sold. A description of our
plastics and filtration technologies business follows.

Porex is a leading developer, manufacturer and distributor of proprietary porous plastic products and components. Porex also manufactures
and distributes proprietary injection molded solid plastic components. Porex s porous and solid plastic components are used in other
manufacturers products for healthcare applications as well as for life sciences, industrial and consumer applications. Porex s finished porous
plastic products are used in the medical device, research and clinical laboratory and surgical markets. These finished products are sold under
Porex s own brands and its customers private label brands. Porex s business consists of four primary product groups: the Porous Products Group,
the Bio Products Group, the Medical Products Group and the Surgical Products Group.

The Porous Products Group designs, engineers, manufactures and markets porous plastic products and components used to control the flow
of fluids and gases. These products and components include:

medical device components, such as intravenous catheter and sterilization vents,
serum filters and pipette tip filters, used in research and clinical laboratories,
air and water filtration devices, dust collectors and fuel filters, and

writing instrument components.

Porous plastics are permeable plastic structures having omni-directional (i.e., porous in all directions to the flow of fluids and gases)
inter-connecting pores. These pores, depending upon the number and size, control the flow of liquids and gases. We manufacture porous plastics
with pore sizes between approximately 1 and 500 micrometers (one micrometer is equal to one-millionth of a meter; an object of 40 micrometers
in size is about as small as can be discerned by the naked eye). Our ability to control pore size provides the opportunity to serve numerous
applications, including filtering, venting, wicking, diffusing and muffling. We produce porous plastic products in our own manufacturing
facilities, which are equipped to manufacture products for our customers in custom-molded shapes, sheets, tubes or rods depending on customer
needs.

The Bio Products Group designs, engineers, manufactures and markets disposable plastic laboratory products for liquid handling and other
critical applications, such as sample collection, sample preparation and sample storage, used in the research, clinical laboratory and diagnostic
testing markets, including:

pipette tips,

microcentrifuge tubes,

polymerese chain reaction tubes,

test tubes, and

closure devices.
We market these products under our own brands as well as numerous private label arrangements and generic packaging for our distributor
customers. Our distributors sell our products to research and clinical laboratories worldwide. Research laboratories include leading
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, electronics companies, medical schools, veterinary institutes, government-funded research

institutes and colleges and universities. Clinical laboratories include hospital laboratories, reference laboratories, physician practice management
laboratories, alternative site laboratories and government facilities.
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The Medical Products Group designs, engineers, manufactures and markets injection molded medical components and finished medical
devices and high volume, high performance tooling. These components and devices are primarily incorporated into or used with the products of
other manufacturers. The Medical Products Group also provides design and engineering services to medical device companies and designs and
fabricates molds for internal use and outside sales. The group s products include:

caps and connectors used with the tubing for intravenous delivery of fluids,
manifolds with access ports for the intravenous administration of fluids during surgical procedures, and

needleless access connector ports for the administration of IV fluids, which eliminates the need for special adapters or sharp needles for
fluid delivery.
The Medical Products Group provides its products and services to a global marketplace that includes many of the largest manufacturers of
medical devices serving the drug/fluid delivery and diagnostic medical equipment markets.

The Surgical Products Group designs, engineers, manufactures and markets sterile surgical products for use in hospitals, clinics and private
practices, including:

surgical implants used in facial reconstructive and aesthetic surgery,
surgical drains, and

surgical markers.

The biocompatible nature of the porous plastic material used in our surgical implants and the ability of our proprietary technology to produce
complex shapes make it an excellent surgical alternative to bone and cartilage grafts. Since the initial product introduction in 1985, we have
continued to introduce new products expanding the uses of porous plastics products for reconstructive surgery, oculoplastic surgery and aesthetic

surgery.

Porex is an international business, with operations in North America, Europe and Asia. Porex sells its products to customers in more than
60 countries and has a diverse domestic and international customer base of over 2,000 healthcare, life sciences, industrial and consumer products
customers.

Item 2.  Properties

We lease our corporate headquarters offices in Elmwood Park, New Jersey, which consists of approximately 40,000 square feet of space,
under leases that expire in March 2006.

We lease additional important facilities in:

Nashville, Tennessee for WebMD Envoy s headquarters and primary data and call centers;
Alachua, Florida for WebMD Medical Manager s development and engineering operations; and

New York, New York for WebMD Health s headquarters and its editorial and marketing operations.

We use facilities in approximately 110 additional locations throughout the United States, 10 of which are owned and the rest of which are
leased. These locations include sales and other offices, production centers, data centers and call centers. We believe that our offices and other
facilities are adequate for our current operations.

Since September 2000, we have terminated leases, allowed leases to expire or entered into subleases with respect to approximately 90
leased facilities in connection with our restructuring and integration efforts. See Business Restructuring and Integration on page 5. However, we
still lease approximately 30 properties and own three properties that we have vacated or are in the process of vacating as part of our integration,
consolidation and restructuring efforts. We continue to seek to sell, lease or sublease our surplus properties or to negotiate the termination of
leases for these properties, as appropriate.
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Item 3.  Legal Proceedings
Porex Mammary Implant Litigation

From 1988 through 1990, Porex distributed silicone mammary implants in the United States pursuant to a distribution arrangement with a
Japanese manufacturer. Porex believes that, after accounting for implants returned to Porex, the aggregate number of persons who received
implants distributed by Porex totals approximately 2,500. Since March 1991, Porex has been named as one of many co-defendants in a number
of actions brought by recipients of mammary implants. The typical case or claim alleges that the individual s mammary implants caused one or
more of a wide range of ailments. These implant cases and claims generally raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues and are subject to
many uncertainties and complexities, including, but not limited to, the facts and circumstances of each particular case or claim, the jurisdiction
in which each suit is brought, and differences in applicable law. Porex does not have sufficient information to evaluate each case and claim.

Certain of the actions against Porex have been dismissed, where it was determined that the implant in question was not distributed by Porex.
In addition, as of February 12, 2002, approximately 300 actions have been settled by the manufacturer, or by Porex s insurance carriers, without
material cost to Porex. As of February 12, 2002, six actions and two out-of-court claims were pending against Porex. During calendar year 2001,
there were two implant-related claims made against Porex by individuals as compared with two claims made during calendar year 2000, 39
claims during calendar year 1999 and nine claims during calendar year 1998. The majority of claims made during 1999 were claims that were
filed by individuals following a court ruling in 1999 that cases filed in earlier years would not proceed as class actions, as a result of which such
individuals would not be members of a class in such cases.

In 1994, Porex was notified that its insurance carrier would not renew its then-existing insurance coverage after December 31, 1994 with
respect to actions and claims arising out of its distribution of implants. However, Porex exercised its right, under such policy, to purchase
extended reporting period coverage with respect to such actions and claims. Such coverage provides insurance subject to existing policy limits,
but for an unlimited time period with respect to actions and claims made after December 31, 1994 based on events that occurred during the
policy period. In addition, Porex has purchased extended reporting period coverage with respect to other excess insurance. This coverage also
extends indefinitely, replacing coverage that would, by its terms, have otherwise expired by December 31, 1997. Porex will continue to evaluate
the need to purchase further extended reporting period coverage from excess insurers to the extent such coverage is reasonably available.

We believe that Porex s present coverage, together with its insurance policies in effect on or before December 31, 1994, should provide
adequate coverage against liabilities that could result from actions or claims arising out of Porex s distribution of silicone mammary implants.
However, we cannot be certain that particular cases and claims will not result in liability that is greater than expected based on Porex s prior
experience. If so, Porex s liability could exceed the amount of its insurance coverage. Furthermore, certain actions and claims seek punitive and
compensatory damages arising out of alleged intentional torts. If these claims are successful, such damages may or may not be covered, in whole
or in part, by Porex s insurance policies.

Envoy Securities Litigation

Envoy and some of its officers were named as defendants in three identical lawsuits filed in the United States District Court for the Middle
District of Tennessee, Nashville Division. The plaintiff in each of these lawsuits purported to represent a class of persons who purchased the
securities of Envoy during the class period from February 12, 1997 through August 18, 1998. In these three original complaints, the plaintiffs
sued the defendants for violations of the federal securities laws. The District Court ordered the three cases consolidated under the caption In re
Envoy Corporation Securities Litigation, and on December 28, 1998, the plaintiffs, pursuant to the district court s consolidation orders, filed a
consolidated class action complaint. The consolidated complaint reasserted the federal securities law claims and also asserted additional claims
under Tennessee common law for fraud and negligent misrepresentation.
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Plaintiffs allege that the defendants made material misrepresentations and omissions in Envoy s public filings and public statements
concerning Envoy s financial statements and Envoy s accounting for some charges taken in connection with acquisitions. Plaintiffs allege that, as
a result of defendants alleged actions, Envoy s reported earnings during the class period were overstated and the price for Envoy s common stock
was artificially inflated. Plaintiffs seek recovery of an unspecified sum in damages on behalf of persons who allegedly purchased Envoy s stock
at allegedly inflated prices.

On March 1, 1999, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss all of plaintiffs claims. Plaintiffs then voluntarily dismissed their state law
claims. On September 17, 1999, the court dismissed the consolidated complaint without prejudice. On November 23, 1999, the plaintiffs filed an
amended consolidated complaint. On May 31, 2000, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the amended consolidated complaint. The court on
February 2, 2001 entered an order denying in part and granting in part defendants motion to dismiss the amended consolidated complaint.
Specifically, the court denied the motion to dismiss as to defendants Envoy and one of the individual defendants and granted the motion to
dismiss as to two of the individual defendants.

The parties have engaged in preliminary settlement discussions which have not yet resulted in agreements on terms for a settlement.

The Agreement and Plan of Merger among Healtheon/ WebMD, Pine Merger Corp., Envoy, Quintiles Transnational Corp., and QFinance,
Inc. dated as of January 22, 2000 provides that Quintiles will indemnify us with respect to this litigation.

Litigation Regarding Distribution of Shares in Healtheon Initial Public Offering

Since July 2001, seven purported class action lawsuits have been filed against Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and Goldman Sachs &
Co., underwriters of the initial public offering of the Company (then known as Healtheon) in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York. Three of these suits also named the Company and certain former officers and directors of the Company as defendants. The
complaints against the Company and its former officers and directors allege violations of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and Rule 10b-5 under that Act and Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 because of failure to disclose certain practices alleged to have
occurred in connection with the distribution of shares in the Healtheon IPO. Claims under Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 have
also been brought against the underwriters. Similar suits have been filed in connection with well over 100 other initial public offerings that
occurred in 1999 and 2000, following reports of governmental investigations of the underwriters practices in the distribution of shares in certain
initial public offerings. We believe that the claims alleged in the lawsuits are primarily directed at the underwriters and, as they relate to us, are
without merit. To the extent that these claims concern practices and disclosures relating to the plan of distribution in the Healtheon initial public
offering, we believe that we will have a claim for indemnification from the underwriters.

Other Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, we are involved in various other claims and legal proceedings. While the ultimate resolution of these
matters, and those discussed above, has yet to be determined, we do not believe that their outcome will have a material adverse effect on our
financial position or results of operations.

30

Table of Contents 36



Edgar Filing: WEBMD CORP /NEWY/ - Form 10-K405

Table of Contents

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

At our Annual Meeting of stockholders held on November 16, 2001, our stockholders voted with respect to the following matters:

To elect Mark J. Adler, M.D., Herman Sarkowsky and Michael A. Singer as Class III directors to serve three year terms ending in 2004:

Mark J. Adler votes for 262,962,932
votes withheld 3,345,292
Herman Sarkowsky votes for 262,955,164
votes withheld 3,353,060
Michael A. Singer votes for 256,823,537
votes withheld 9,484,687

To ratify and approve an amendment to WebMD s 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares of common stock
reserved for issuance under that Plan by 10,000,000 shares, to a total of 20,000,000 shares:

Votes for: 211,361,532
Votes against: 54,374,378
Abstentions: 572,314
Broker non-votes: 0

In addition to the directors elected at the Annual Meeting, our Board of Directors consists of L. John Doerr and Joseph E. Smith, our Class I
directors whose terms expire in 2002, and Paul A. Brooke, James V. Manning and Martin J. Wygod, our Class II directors whose terms expire in

2003.
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Item 4A. Executive Officers

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, the information regarding our executive officers required by
Item 401 of Regulation S-K is hereby included in Part I of this Annual Report. Our executive officers are as follows:

Name Age Position
Martin J. Wygod 62 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Thomas P. Apker* 46 Chief Operating Officer
Kevin Cameron* 35 Executive Vice President, Business Development
Roger C. Holstein* 49 Chief Executive Officer, WebMD Health
Michael A. Singer* Chief Executive Officer and President, WebMD Medical

54 Manager

K. Robert Draughon 41 Executive Vice President, Business Development
Charles A. Mele 45 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Steven E. Simpson 42 Executive Vice President, Sales and Product Management
Anthony Vuolo 44 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Steven Zatz, M.D. Executive Vice President, Professional Information Services

45 and Chief Medical Officer

* Member of the Office of the President

Martin J. Wygod has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of WebMD since March 2001, as our Chief Executive Officer since
October 2000 and as a director since September 2000. From September 2000 until October 2000, Mr. Wygod served as Co-Chief Executive
Officer of WebMD. From May 1989 until September 2000, Mr. Wygod was Chairman of the Board and a director of Medical Manager and its
predecessor, Synetic, until 1999. For part of that time, he was also Chief Executive Officer of Medical Manager. He also served as Chairman of
the Board of Carelnsite from 1999 until September 2000. He is also engaged in the business of racing, boarding and breeding thoroughbred
horses, and is President of River Edge Farm, Inc.

Thomas P. Apker has served as Chief Operating Officer of WebMD since December 2000 and as a member of the Office of the President
since September 2001. From March 1990 until January 1999, Mr. Apker was Senior Vice President of Operations at Merck-Medco Managed
Care, L.L.C., a pharmacy benefits management company.

Kevin Cameron has served as Executive Vice President, Business Development of WebMD since September 2000 and as a member of the
Office of the President since September 2001. Mr. Cameron was Executive Vice President, Corporate Development of Medical Manager and
Carelnsite from April 2000 until the Medical Manager merger. From March 1999 until April 2000, he was Managing Director of the Health Care
Group in the Investment Banking division of UBS Warburg. Prior to March 1999, Mr. Cameron held various positions over a nine-year period at
Salomon Smith Barney, including Director of Health Care Investment Banking.

Roger C. Holstein has served as Chief Executive Officer, WebMD Health since June 2001 and as a member of the Office of the President
since September 2001. He served as Executive Vice President, Marketing and Strategic Planning of WebMD from October 2000 until June
2001. Mr. Holstein served as Executive Vice President  Sales & Marketing and a director of Carelnsite from March 1999 until the
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Carelnsite merger. Mr. Holstein was Executive Vice President Marketing and Sales of Medical Manager from 1997 to July 1999. He was a
Special Consultant to Merck-Medco from 1996 to 1998.

Michael A. Singer has served as Chief Executive Officer and President, WebMD Medical Manager and as a director of WebMD since
September 2000 and, since September 2001, as a member of WebMD s Office of the President. He served as a director of Carelnsite from 1999
until September 2000. Mr. Singer was Vice Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer of Medical Manager from July 1999 until September
2000. Mr. Singer was Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive Officer of Medical Manager Health Systems, Inc., then known as Medical
Manager Corporation, and its predecessors for more than five years prior to July 1999.

K. Robert Draughon has served as WebMD s Executive Vice President, Business Development since November 1999. From February 1998
until November 1999, he served as Chief Financial Officer of WebMD, Inc. From January 1988 to February 1998, he served as Chief Investment
Officer for Fuqua Capital Corporation, a private investment firm based in Atlanta, Georgia.

Charles A. Mele has served as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of WebMD since January 2001. He served as
Executive Vice President and Co-General Counsel of WebMD from September 2000 until January 2001. He served as a director of Carelnsite,
Inc. from 1998 until its acquisition by WebMD. Mr. Mele was Executive Vice President = General Counsel of Medical Manager from March
1998 until its acquisition by WebMD and was Vice President = General Counsel of Medical Manager from July 1995 to March 1998. Mr. Mele is
also a director of Group 1 Software, Inc., a computer software company.

Steven E. Simpson has served as Executive Vice President, Sales and Product Management of WebMD since April 2001. Mr. Simpson
served as our President of Transaction Services from November 2000 until April 2001. He served as Chief Operating Officer of Envoy
Corporation from July 1999 until November 2000. Mr. Simpson served as Senior Vice President of Sales and Product Development for
Columbia/ HCA Inc. from 1996 until 1998. Prior to that time, Mr. Simpson spent 11 years with Johnson & Johnson, a health and personal care
products manufacturing and sales company, where he held senior level positions in the Pharmaceutical Sales, Marketing and Managed Care
divisions.

Anthony Vuolo has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of WebMD since September 2000. Mr. Vuolo was
Senior Vice President Business Development and Treasurer of Medical Manager from March 1999 until the Medical Manager merger and was
Executive Vice President Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer of Medical Manager from March 1998 until March 1999.
Mr. Vuolo served as an executive officer of Medical Manager from May 1997 until the Medical Manager merger and as an officer for more than
five years.

Steven Zatz, M.D. has served as Executive Vice President, Professional Information Services since January 2002 and as Chief Medical
Officer since September 2001. Dr. Zatz served as Executive Vice President, Internet Portals and Applications Services of WebMD from October
2000 to January 2002. Dr. Zatz was a Senior Vice President, Medical Director of Carelnsite from June 1999 until the Carelnsite merger. Prior to
joining Carelnsite, Dr. Zatz was senior vice president of RR Donnelley Financial in charge of its healthcare business from October 1998 to May
1999. From August 1995 to May 1998, Dr. Zatz was the president of Physicians Online.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

We completed the initial public offering of our common stock on February 10, 1999. Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq
National Market under the symbol HLTH since February 11, 1999.

The high and low prices for each quarterly period during the last two fiscal years are as follows:

High Low

2000

First quarter $71.06 $23.00

Second quarter 29.19 12.56

Third quarter 18.25 11.25

Fourth quarter 14.94 5.50
2001

First quarter $10.63 $ 4.56

Second quarter 9.44 4.50

Third quarter 7.10 3.22

Fourth quarter 7.15 3.29

On March 15, 2002, there were 4,864 holders of record of our common stock. Because many of these shares are held by brokers and other
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated since the date of our initial public offering and is likely to fluctuate in the future.
Changes in the market price of our common stock may result from, among other things:

quarter-to-quarter variations in operating results

operating results being less than analysts estimates

changes in analysts earnings estimates

announcements of new technologies, products and services or pricing policies by us or our competitors
announcements of acquisitions or strategic partnerships by us or our competitors

developments in existing customer or strategic relationships

actual or perceived changes in our business strategy

developments in pending litigation and claims

sales of large amounts of our common stock

changes in market conditions in the healthcare, information technology or Internet industries

changes in general economic conditions
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fluctuations in the securities markets in general.

In addition, the market prices of Internet and healthcare information technology stocks in general, and of our common stock in particular,
have experienced large fluctuations, sometimes quite rapidly. These fluctuations often may be unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of these companies. Any negative change in the public s perception of the prospects of these companies, as well as other broad
market and industry factors, may result in changes in the price of our common stock.
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We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings to finance the expansion of our operations.

Sales of Unregistered Securities During the Fourth Quarter of 2001

On October 11, 2001, we issued to a service provider, as consideration for its services, an option to acquire 400,000 shares of our common
stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share. The option is immediately exercisable and expires on October 11, 2006. The issuance of the option
was exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in this
Annual Report. Our financial information presented reflects our combined financial position and results of operations with ActaMed Corporation
for all dates and periods presented, reflects the results of operations for WebMD, Inc., MedE America and Medcast from the closing date of
these mergers, November 12, 1999 forward, for Kinetra from the closing date of January 31, 2000 forward, for Envoy from the closing date of
May 26, 2000 forward, and for Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth from the closing date of September 12, 2000 forward. All of these
acquisitions were accounted for as purchases, except for ActaMed, which was accounted for as a pooling of interests. The consolidated
statements of operations data for the three-year period ended December 31, 2001 and the consolidated balance sheet data at December 31, 2001
and 2000 are derived from, and are qualified by reference to, the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report. The consolidated statements of operations data for the two-year period ended December 31, 1998 and the consolidated balance sheet
data at December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 are derived from, and are qualified by reference to, audited consolidated financial statements that are
not included in this report.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statements of
Operations Data:

Revenue $ 706,595 $ 517,153 $ 102,149 $ 48,838 $ 13,390
Costs and expenses:
Cost of operations 468,688 383,565 88,576 43,014 10,446
Development and engineering 39,615 58,788 29,669 19,002 12,267
Sales, marketing, general and
administrative 433,653 530,927 82,315 25,605 12,966
Depreciation, amortization and
other 2,389,766 2,186,986 193,067 16,055 6,004
Impairment of long-lived
and other assets 3,826,893
Restructuring and integration
charge 266,755 452,919
Loss on investments 39,602
Interest income, net 29,106 50,026 3,486 790 288
Loss from continuing operations (6,689,669) (3,085,608) (287,992) (54,048) (28,005)

Discontinued operations:
Net income from discontinued

operations 5,351
Net loss $(6,684,318) $(3,085,608) $(287,992) $(54,048) $(28,005)
I I I I I

Basic and diluted net loss per
common share:
Loss from continuing

operations $ (19.19) $ (12.61) $ (3.59 $ (1.54) $ (3.88)
Net income from discontinued
operations .01
Net loss per common share $ (19.18) $ (12.61) $ (B.58) $ (154 $ (3.88)
| | | ] ]
Weighted-average shares 348,570 244,688 80,367 34,987 7,223

outstanding used in computing
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As of December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments $ 352,205 $ 490,797 $ 291,286 $36,817 $21,804
Working capital 432,103 629,312 216,304 27,934 14,790
Total assets 1,556,338 8,455,631 4,123,668 79,940 53,747
Other long-term liabilities 1,208 15,260 2,695 2,984 932
Convertible redeemable preferred
stock 10,000 10,000 50,948
Convertible preferred stock 710,746
Stockholders equity (net capital
deficiency) 1,238,772 8,091,985 3,973,672 59,413 (9,930)
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Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Item 7 contains forward-looking statements with respect to possible events, outcomes or results that are, and are expected to continue
to be, subject to risks, uncertainties and contingencies, including those identified in this Item. See Cautionary Statement Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements on page 2.

WebMD Corporation is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated in December 1995 and commenced operations in January 1996 as
Healtheon Corporation. Our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol HLTH since February 11, 1999. In May
1998, Healtheon merged with ActaMed Corporation. In November 1999, Healtheon completed mergers with WebMD, Inc., MedE America and
Medcast. Following these mergers, Healtheon changed its name to Healtheon/ WebMD Corporation. Healtheon/ WebMD completed
acquisitions of Kinetra and Envoy in January 2000 and May 2000, respectively. On September 12, 2000, Healtheon/ WebMD completed
mergers with Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth and changed its name to WebMD Corporation.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of WebMD s financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements
and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States. The preparation of the financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements. We base our estimates on historical experience, current business factors, and various other assumptions that we believe are
necessary to form a basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis, including those related to revenue recognition, carrying value of short-term and long-term
investments, deferred tax assets, collectibility of customer receivables, assets held for sale, prepaid content and distribution services, long-lived
assets including goodwill and other intangible assets, certain accrued expenses, accruals related to our restructuring program, contingencies and
litigation.

We believe the following reflect our critical accounting policies and our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements:

Revenue Our revenue recognition policies for each reportable segment are as follows:

Transaction Services or WebMD Envoy. Healthcare payers and providers pay us fees for our services, generally on a per transaction basis
or monthly basis. We recognize revenue as we perform the service. Healthcare payers and providers also pay us one-time implementation
and annual maintenance fees. We recognize revenue from these fees ratably over the term of the respective agreements.

Physician Services or WebMD Medical Manager. Healthcare providers pay us one-time fees for the purchase of our Medical Manager
practice management system. We recognize revenue from these one-time fees when we enter into noncancelable agreements with our
customers, the products have been delivered and there are no uncertainties regarding product acceptance and delivery and no significant
future performance obligations. Amounts received in advance of meeting these criteria are deferred until we meet these criteria.
Healthcare providers also pay us fees for maintenance and support of their practice management system, including the hardware and
software. We recognize revenue from these fees ratably over the contract period, typically in one year or less. Healthcare providers may
also pay us fees for sending transactions to payers and patients. We recognize revenue from these fees, which are generally paid on a
monthly or per transaction basis, as we provide the service.
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Portal Services or WebMD Health. Customers pay us for advertising, sponsorship, continuing medical education ( CME ), content
syndication and distribution, and e-commerce transactions related to our online distribution channels and the online and offline
distribution channels of our strategic partners. In 2000, we also were paid subscription fees to our physician portal. Revenue from
advertising is recognized as advertisements are delivered. Revenue from sponsorship arrangements is recognized ratably over the term of
the applicable agreement. Revenue from CME arrangements is recognized over the period we satisfy the minimum credit hour
requirements of the applicable agreements. Revenue from fixed fee content license or carriage fees is recognized ratably over the term of
the applicable agreement. E-Commerce revenue is recognized when a subscriber or consumer utilizes our Internet-based services or
purchases goods or services through our Web site or co-branded Web site with one of our strategic partners. Subscription revenue,
including subscriptions revenue from sponsorship arrangements, is recognized over the subscription period.

Long-Lived Assets  Our long-lived assets consist of property and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets. Goodwill and other
intangible assets arise from the several acquisitions we have made. The amount assigned to intangible assets is subjective and based on our
estimates of the future benefit of the intangible asset using accepted valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow and replacement
cost models. Our long-lived assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which we determined based on the consideration of
several factors including the period of time the asset is expected to remain in service. We evaluate the carrying value of long-lived assets
whenever indicators of impairment are present. During 2001 we identified certain indicators of possible impairment of our long-lived
assets, primarily goodwill and other intangible assets. We evaluated our long-lived assets for impairment by determining identifiable cash
flows to related asset groupings, and compared the projected undiscounted cash flows for each asset grouping to its carrying value. Once
we determined there was an impairment we quantified the impairment based on projected discounted cash flows. Other unknown future
indications of possible impairment charges, such as a significant downturn in one of our business segments or general economic
conditions, could result in an additional assessment of our long-lived assets for impairment and could result in an additional impairment
charge in the future.

Investments  Our investments at December 31, 2001 consist principally of U.S. Treasury Notes, Federal Agency Notes and Certificates of
Deposit. Each reporting period we evaluate the carrying value of our investments and record a loss on investments when we believe an
investment has experienced a decline in value that is other than temporary. We do not recognize gains on an investment until sold. Our
carrying value is not necessarily indicative of the underlying value of an investment. Future changes in market or economic conditions or
operating results of our investments could result in gains or losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may
not be reflected in an investment s carrying value.

Deferred Tax Assets  Our deferred tax assets are comprised primarily of net operating loss carryforwards. At December 31, 2001, we had
net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1.9 billion. These loss carryforwards may be used to offset taxable income in future
periods reducing the amount of taxes we might otherwise be required to pay. Due to a lack of a history of generating taxable income, we
record a valuation allowance equal to 100% of our net deferred tax assets. In the event that we are able to generate taxable earnings in the
future and determine that we can realize our deferred tax assets, an adjustment to the valuation allowance would be made which may
increase income in the period that such determination was made.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated amounts of accounts receivable that may
not be recoverable. Actual future events and experience may require revisions in our estimates for bad debt expense.

Assets Held for Sale  Our board of directors approved our plan to dispose of our plastics and filtration technologies subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as Porex. Our estimate of Porex s fair value is classified as assets held for sale on our balance sheet. Porex s ability
to continue to generate
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earnings in the future could affect the carrying amount, and possibly result in a future impairment charge. Additionally, our completion of
the divestiture of this asset could result in a gain or loss in the future to the extent that proceeds received differs from our carrying value.

Restructuring and Integration In connection with our restructuring and integration efforts, modifications to our strategic relationship with
News Corporation resulted in a change in the carrying value of the domestic advertising service we have the rights to, classified as prepaid
content, services and distribution. We estimated the fair value of our rights under the new agreement using a discounted cash flow
approach. This estimate also affects the amortization of this asset in future periods over the contractual term. Also, in connection with our
restructuring and integration effort, we recorded charges for estimated future lease obligations and lease cancellation penalties related to
exited facilities based on many different variables, such as the term to expiration, contractual rights under the lease agreement and current
real estate market conditions. Future changes in any of these variables, such as a change in real estate market conditions could have an
impact on these estimates.

Warrants We have issued warrants to acquire shares of our common stock as consideration for services. The value of these warrants has
been determined using the Black-Scholes model which may not necessarily be representative of the cash consideration we could have
received in exchange for the warrants.

Acquisition History

We rapidly and significantly expanded our operations through acquisitions. We completed the following significant acquisitions during
1999 and 2000:

Shares of Our Shares of Our Options and
Prsef(e)zll;ed Common Stock Warrants
Company Acquired Date Acquired Issued Issued Assumed
WebMD, Inc. November 1999 63,932,659 49,012,168
MedE America November 1999 10,404,454 468,584
Medcast November 1999 2,528,465 164,036
Kinetra January 2000 7,437,248
Envoy May 2000 35,000,000
OnHealth September 2000 4,678,609 1,384,113
Medical Manager/ Carelnsite September 2000 100 134,370,010 81,084,865

All of these acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method. Our financial information presented reflects the results of
operations for WebMD, Inc., MedE America and Medcast from the closing date of November 12, 1999 forward, Kinetra from the closing date of
January 31, 2000 forward, Envoy from the closing date of May 26, 2000 forward, and Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth from the
closing date of September 12, 2000 forward.

As a result of our acquisition of WebMD, Inc., MedE America and Medcast, we recorded total intangible assets of $3.7 billion, consisting
primarily of $3.4 billion of goodwill and $319.5 million of other intangible assets. The identifiable intangibles are being amortized over their
estimated useful lives of one to five years. Goodwill is being amortized over three to four years.

As a result of our acquisition of Kinetra, we recorded total intangible assets of $284.0 million, consisting primarily of $35.1 million of
customer lists, $5.7 million of acquired technology, $4.3 million of covenants not-to-compete, $2.3 million of workforce, $1.6 million of
trademarks and $235.0 million of goodwill. The identifiable intangibles are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of one to three
years. Goodwill is being amortized over three years.

As a result of our acquisition of Envoy, we recorded total intangible assets of $2.4 billion, consisting primarily of $159.2 million of
customer lists, trademarks and acquired technology and $2.2 billion of
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goodwill. The identifiable intangibles are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of one to three years. Goodwill is being amortized
over three years.

As a result of our acquisition of OnHealth, we recorded total goodwill of $374.6 million which will be amortized over its estimated useful
life of three years.

As a result of our acquisition of Medical Manager and Carelnsite, we recorded total intangible assets of $2.3 billion, consisting primarily of
$24.5 million of physician relationships, $16.8 million of trademarks, $12.7 million of workforce and $2.3 billion of goodwill. The identifiable
intangibles are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of three to fifteen years. Goodwill is being amortized over three years. As we
announced on September 28, 2000, our Board of Directors approved management s plan to dispose of Porex, which we acquired in our merger
with Medical Manager on September 12, 2000. Porex designs, manufactures and distributes porous and solid plastic components and products
used in life sciences, healthcare, industrial and consumer applications. In accordance with the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task
Force of the Financial Accounting Standards Board on Issue No. 87-11, referred to as EITF 87-11, the expected net proceeds and the cash flows
of Porex until sold were initially allocated to assets held for sale in the allocation of the Medical Manager purchase price and are included in
current assets. At that time, we reduced the consolidated balance sheet for all items that pertained specifically to Porex. As the divestiture of
Porex was not completed within the one-year period allotted by EITF 87-11, we are now required to record the results of Porex in our statement
of operations as of September 13, 2001, as a discontinued operation in accordance with the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task
Force on Issue No. 90-6. We expect Porex to continue to generate earnings while we continue to explore various divestiture alternatives. We
estimated the fair value of Porex to be $185.0 million at September 30, 2001. The fair value of Porex continues to be recorded in assets held for
sale and its cash flow activity has been excluded from the consolidated statement of operations and the consolidated statement of cash flows
through September 12, 2001.

In 2001, we also completed 11 additional acquisitions. In December 2001, we acquired the portal assets of MedicalL.ogic/ Medscape, Inc.
( Medscape ) for $9.2 million in cash plus $1.2 million of estimated expenses. In connection with this acquisition, we recorded goodwill of
$7.3 million and intangible assets of $2.4 million. The intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years. In
2001, we acquired ten small physician services companies for the total cost of $8.2 million, paid primarily in cash in connection with these
acquisitions. We recorded goodwill and other intangible assets of $13.5 million associated with these acquisitions.

For additional information related to our amortization of intangible assets, see ~ Results of Operations 2001 and 2000 Depreciation,
Amortization and Other on page 46 and the discussion of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142in  Recent Accounting Pronouncements on page 53.

Restructuring and Integration Initiatives

After the mergers with Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth, our board of directors approved a restructuring and integration plan,
with the objective of eliminating duplication and redundancies which resulted from the acquisitions made by us since November 1999 and
consolidating our operational infrastructure into a common platform to more efficiently serve our customers.

Additionally, as part of our restructuring and integration efforts, we also undertook a review of our existing strategic relationships in light of
several criteria, including strategic relevance to both us and our partners, potential conflicts with other agreements as a result of the numerous
acquisitions made by us, profitability, and impact on future revenue streams. These discussions have resulted in significant revisions to some of
our strategic relationships. Although we are substantially complete with this process, we are still in discussions with certain of our partners in an
effort to redefine those relationships in a manner that better serves the needs of each party. It is possible that, as a result of continuing
discussions, these relationships may be revised or terminated, which may result in the elimination of existing revenue of as much as $5.0 million
on a quarterly basis beginning in the June 2002 quarter. We do not expect an adverse impact on profitability as a result of any potential
elimination of revenues.
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In connection with our restructuring and integration efforts, we recorded restructuring and integration charges of $266.8 million, of which
$185.5 million were non-cash charges in 2001 and $452.9 million, of which $380.0 million were non-cash in 2000. Our efforts are substantially
complete and our remaining obligation related to these efforts, is estimated to be $44.4 million, which is included in accrued expenses. For
additional information regarding our restructuring and integration efforts, see Business Restructuring and Integration beginning on page 5 and
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

Operating Segments

For the years 2000 and 1999, we reported and managed our operations within a single segment: provider of connectivity to participants in
the healthcare industry. As a result of the substantial completion of restructuring and integration efforts that began in the third quarter of 2000,
we recently have aligned our business into three operating segments as follows:

Transaction Services or WebMD Envoy. We transmit electronic and Internet transactions between healthcare payers and physicians,
pharmacies, dentists, hospitals, laboratory companies and other healthcare providers. We provide connectivity and transaction services
through an integrated electronic transaction processing system. These services assist the group s customers in automating key
administrative and clinical functions. This segment includes certain operations from the former Healtheon, and the ActaMed, MedE
America, WebMD, Inc., Kinetra, Envoy and Carelnsite acquisitions.

Physician Services or WebMD Medical Manager. We develop and market integrated physician practice management systems, including
administrative, financial and clinical applications and services, under The Medical Manager brand. These systems and services allow
physician offices to automate their scheduling, billing and other administrative tasks, to maintain electronic medical records and to
automate documentation of patient encounters. This segment includes certain operations from Medical Manager and other small physician
services companies acquired in 2001.

Portal Services or WebMD Health. We provide online healthcare information and related resources and services for consumers and
healthcare professionals, both directly and through our relationships with leading general consumer Internet portals. We also provide
online content for use by media and healthcare partners in their Web sites. We develop and sell online and offline programs for advertisers
and sponsors, particularly those who are interested in influencing healthcare decisions. This segment includes certain operations from the
former Healtheon and the ActaMed, WebMD, Inc., Medcast, Medscape and OnHealth acquisitions.

We evaluate the performance of our business segments based upon income or loss before restructuring and non-cash items. Non-cash items
include depreciation, amortization, impairment charges, losses on investments and non-cash expenses related to content and distribution services
acquired in exchange for our equity securities in acquisitions and strategic alliances and stock compensation primarily related to stock options
issued and assumed in connection with acquisitions. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as the accounting policies for the
consolidated company. We record inter-segment revenues at rates comparable to those charged to third parties for comparable services.

We are not able to provide certain segment information for the years 2000 and 1999 as our operations and internal reporting were not
organized in a manner consistent with the current reportable segments and it is impracticable to create this information.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain data expressed as a percentage of total revenue for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:
Cost of operations 66.3 74.2 86.7
Development and engineering 5.6 11.4 29.0
Sales, marketing, general and administrative 61.4 102.6 80.6
Depreciation, amortization and other 338.1 422.9 189.0
Impairment of long-lived and other assets 541.6
Restructuring and integration charge 37.8 87.6
Loss on investments 7.6
Interest income, net 4.1 9.7 34
Loss from continuing operations (946.7) (596.6) (281.9)
Net income from discontinued operations 0.7
Net loss (946.0)% (596.6)% (281.9)%
I I I

Revenue is derived from our three business segments: transaction services, physician services and portal services. Our transaction services
include administrative services, such as transaction processing for medical, dental and pharmacy claims, automated patient statements and
clinical lab and reporting services, such as lab test orders and results. Our physician services include sales of The Medical Manager practice
management system, which addresses the administrative, financial, clinical and practice management needs of physician practices. Portal
services include advertising, sponsorship, continuing medical education, content syndication and distribution, and e-commerce transactions
through our online distribution channels and the online and offline distribution channels of our strategic partners.

Cost of operations consists of costs related to services we provide to customers and costs associated with the operation and maintenance of
our networks. These costs include salaries and related expenses for network operations personnel and customer support personnel,
telecommunication costs, maintenance of network equipment, cost of hardware related to the sale of practice management systems by physician
services, a portion of facilities expenses, leased personnel and facilities costs, and sales commissions paid to certain re-sellers of our transaction
services products. Also included are non-cash expenses related to content and distribution services.

Development and engineering expense consists primarily of salaries and related expenses associated with the development of applications
and services. Expenses include compensation paid to development and engineering personnel, fees to outside contractors and consultants, and
the maintenance of capital equipment used in the development process.

Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense consists primarily of advertising, product and brand promotion, salaries and related
expenses for sales, administrative, finance, legal, information technology, human resources and executive personnel. These expenses include
items related to account management and marketing personnel, commissions, costs and expenses for marketing programs and trade shows, and
fees for professional marketing and advertising services, as well as fees for professional services, costs of general insurance, costs of accounting
and internal control systems to support our operations. Also included are non-cash expenses related to content and distribution services acquired
for our equity securities and stock compensation expense primarily related to the amortization of deferred compensation. Content and
distribution services consist of advertising, promotion and distribution services from our
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arrangements with News Corporation, Microsoft, AOL and other partners. Stock compensation primarily relates to deferred compensation
associated with the fair value of stock options issued in exchange for outstanding stock options of companies acquired in 2000, and the excess of
the market price over the exercise price of options granted to employees.

2001 and 2000

The following discussion includes a comparison of the results of operations for 2001 and 2000 on both an actual and pro forma basis. The
pro forma information gives effect to the acquisitions of Kinetra, Envoy, Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth (the 2000 Acquisitions ) as
if they had occurred at the beginning of each period presented. The effect of all other business combinations was not material to the pro forma
information presented below. The information is provided for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results
that would have occurred if the transactions had been consummated at the dates indicated, nor is it necessarily indicative of future operating
results of the combined company and should not be construed as representative of these amounts for any future periods.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 Pro Forma 2000

$ % $ % $ %

(in millions)

Revenue
Transaction services 384.0 54.3 270.4 52.3 373.7 47.1
Physician services 260.2 36.8 83.6 16.2 248.7 313
Portal services 74.6 10.6 140.1 27.1 150.2 18.9
Inter-segment eliminations
and other (12.2) (1.7) 23.1 4.4 21.7 2.7

Total 706.6 100.0 517.2 100.0 794.3 100.0

Costs and Expenses
Cost of operations 468.7 66.3 383.6 74.2 531.5 66.9
Development and
engineering 39.5 5.6 58.8 11.4 96.2 12.1
Sales, marketing, general
and administrative 433.7 61.4 530.9 102.6 746.0 93.9
Depreciation, amortization
and other 2,389.8 338.1 2,187.0 4229 3,140.3 395.4
Impairment of long-lived
and other assets 3,826.9 541.6
Restructuring and
integration charge 266.8 37.8 452.9 87.6 452.9 57.0
Loss on investments 39.6 7.6 39.6 5.0
Interest income, net 20.1 4.1 50.0 9.7 54.9 6.9

Loss from continuing
operations (6,689.7) (946.7) (3,085.6) (596.6) (4,157.3) (523.4)

Revenue. Our total revenue increased to $706.6 million in 2001 from $517.2 million in 2000. Increases in our transaction services and
physician services revenues were partially offset by a decline in our portal services revenue and inter-segment eliminations and other. The
increase in transaction services revenue was primarily attributable to the full year impact of the acquisitions of Envoy in May 2000 and
Carelnsite in September 2000. The increase in physician services revenue was attributable to the full year impact of the September 2000
acquisition of Medical Manager. The decrease in portal services revenue was primarily due to the elimination of revenue as a result of the
termination of our strategic relationship with DuPont and the revisions to our strategic relationship with Microsoft. Revenues associated with
these relationships were $48.5 million in 2000, primarily related to the sponsorship of subscriptions to the
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WebMD professional portal. There were no revenues from these strategic relationships in 2001. Also contributing to the decline in portal
services revenue was the impact of the softness in the market for Internet advertising on us and certain of our carriage partners. The decrease in
inter-segment eliminations and other reflects our decision during 2000 to exit our technology consulting and outsourcing relationships and other
non-core products, and an increase in the elimination of inter-segment revenues included across the reportable segments to $14.1 million from
$3.1 million.

Our total revenue decreased to $706.6 million in 2001 from $794.3 million in 2000 on a pro forma basis. Decreases in our portal services
revenue as well as inter-segment eliminations and other were partially offset by increases in our transaction services and physician services
revenues. The decrease in portal services revenue was primarily attributable to the elimination of revenues from sponsored subscriptions to our
physician portal and the impact of the softness in the market for Internet advertising on us and certain of our carriage partners. The decrease in
inter-segment eliminations and other is primarily attributable to our decision during 2000 to exit our technology consulting and outsourcing
relationships and other non-core products and an increase in the elimination of inter-segment revenues included across reportable segments to
$14.1 million from $9.4 million. The increase in transaction services revenue was primarily attributable to higher transaction volumes. This
increase was offset by a reduction in revenues of $6.0 million related to certain terminated product offerings or relationships such as hospital and
laboratory physician connectivity arrangements. The increase in physician services revenue was primarily attributable to the increase in sales of
products and services to existing customers.

Revenue from related parties was $3.0 million in 2001 and $45.3 million in 2000. These revenues consist of services provided to Microsoft
(who ceased being a related party in October 2001) and News Corporation (who ceased being a related party in February 2001). None of our
customers individually accounted for more than 10% of our revenue in 2001 or 2000.

We expect that revenue will increase in 2002, as a result of our acquisition of Medscape in our portal services segment as well as new
product distribution in the physician services and transaction services segments. This increase will be partially offset by the impact of the phase
out of non-core products and services, primarily in the transaction and portal services segments. We expect that the increase in revenues will
occur in the latter half of 2002 as a result of the timing of new product introductions.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Operations. Cost of operations increased to $468.7 million in 2001 from $383.6 million in 2000. The increase is attributable to
expenses related to the full year impact of the companies acquired during 2000, increased personnel and network operation costs and
$1.5 million of non-cash distribution service expense, partially offset by the elimination of costs as a result of our restructuring and integration
efforts. As a result of the revision or termination of our strategic relationships, primarily with Microsoft, News Corporation and DuPont, costs of
$37.8 million included in cost of operations in 2000 were eliminated in 2001. Cost of operations as a percentage of revenue declined to 66.3%
from 74.2%. The decrease in cost of operations as a percentage of revenues is primarily due to changes in product mix as well as the elimination
of costs as a result of our restructuring and integration efforts.

Cost of operations decreased to $468.7 million in 2001 from $531.5 million in 2000 on a pro forma basis. As a percent of revenue, our cost
of operations declined to 66.3% from 66.9%. This decrease resulted from the elimination of costs from our restructuring and integration
initiatives and from a change in the mix of revenues.

We expect cost of operations as a percentage of revenues to improve further in 2002 as a result of continued efficiencies from our
consolidation initiatives.

Development and Engineering. Development and engineering expense decreased to $39.5 million in 2001 from $58.8 million in 2000. The
decrease was the result of cost reductions related to our restructuring and integration efforts, partially offset by the full year impact for
companies acquired during 2000.
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Development and engineering expense decreased to $39.5 million in 2001 from $96.2 million in 2000 on a pro forma basis. The decrease is
primarily due to the impact of cost reductions resulting from our restructuring and integration efforts.

We expect that development and engineering costs will slightly increase in 2002 primarily as a result of investment in new product
initiatives. We expect development and engineering costs to remain flat as a percentage of revenues.

Sales, Marketing, General and Administrative. Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense decreased to $433.7 million in 2001
from $530.9 million in 2000. Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense excluding non-cash expenses was $311.2 million in 2001
compared to $370.9 million in 2000. The decrease in sales, marketing, general and administrative expense excluding non-cash expenses resulted
from the elimination of costs as a result of our restructuring and integration efforts, offset partially by costs associated with the 2000 acquisitions
and $3.0 million in severance cost associated with the departure of our former President. As a result of the revision or termination of our
strategic relationships, primarily with Microsoft, News Corporation and DuPont, costs of $36.5 million included in selling, marketing, general
and administrative expense in 2000 were eliminated in 2001. Non-cash expenses include content and distribution services expenses of
$44.0 million and $87.5 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively and stock compensation of $78.5 million and $72.5 million in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in non-cash content and distribution services expense reflects the impact of our revised strategic relationships with
News Corporation and Microsoft and the termination of the DuPont relationship.

Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense decreased to $433.7 million in 2001 from $746.0 million in 2000 on a pro forma basis.
Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense excluding non-cash was $311.2 million in 2001 and $526.8 million in 2000 on a pro forma
basis. The decrease in sales, marketing, general and administrative expense excluding non-cash expenses is primarily due to the impact of cost
reductions resulting from our restructuring and integration efforts. Non-cash expenses related to content and distribution services was
$44.0 million in 2001 and $87.5 million in 2000 on a pro forma basis. The decrease in non-cash content and distribution services expense
reflects the impact of our revised strategic relationships with News Corporation and Microsoft and the termination of the DuPont relationship.
Non-cash stock compensation was $78.5 million in 2001 and $131.7 million in 2000 on a pro forma basis. The decrease in non-cash stock
compensation is primarily related to the vesting schedules of stock options issued and assumed in connection with acquisitions.

We expect that sales, marketing, general and administrative expense will continue to decrease in 2002, in both absolute dollars and as a
percentage of revenues.

Depreciation, Amortization and Other. Depreciation, amortization and other increased to $2.390 billion in 2001 from $2.187 billion in
2000. The increase is due primarily to the full year impact of amortization of intangible assets associated with the companies acquired in 2000,
offset by the reduced amortization as a result of the impairment charge of $3.827 billion related to the write-down of our long-lived assets during
2001 and the elimination of $108.2 million of dividends and accretion of discount related to the Series A convertible preferred stock in 2000.

Depreciation, amortization and other decreased to $2.390 billion in 2001 from $3.140 billion in 2000 on a pro forma basis. This decrease is
due to reduced amortization as a result of the impairment charge related to the write-down of our long-lived assets and elimination of
$108.2 million of dividends and accretion of discount on the Series A convertible preferred stock.

As a result of the write-down related to our long-lived and other assets, and upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002,
goodwill will no longer be subject to amortization and, as a result, we expect depreciation and amortization expense to be approximately
$120 million to $130 million in 2002.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Other Assets. During 2001, we identified certain indicators of possible impairment of long-lived assets,
primarily goodwill and other acquired intangible assets. These indicators included a further decline in the price of our common stock to its
lowest price in the last twelve months accompanied by a significant decline in the volatility of our stock price, a sustained decline in
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valuations in the e-health, technology and Internet sectors, and the impact of recent trends in general economic conditions. Based on these
indicators, we reviewed substantially all of our long-lived assets for impairment. As a result of this review, we determined that our long-lived
and other assets, primarily goodwill and other acquired intangibles, were impaired and recorded a write-down of $3.827 billion during 2001.

Restructuring and Integration Charges. In connection with our restructuring and integration efforts, we recorded a total charge in 2001 of
$266.8 million, which consists of:

$123.2 million relating to the restructuring and exiting of contracts primarily associated with Microsoft, of which $133.5 million
represented non-cash charges related to the write-off of intangible assets associated with the original relationships with Microsoft recorded
as part of our acquisition of WebMD, Inc. in 1999 offset by a $15.6 million benefit for the settlement of certain obligations from the
original Microsoft agreement as well as $5.3 million related to net settlements to exit contractual obligations.

$52.0 million associated with the settlement of the original Quintiles agreements.

personnel-related restructuring costs of $67.6 million, of which $52.0 million represented non-cash stock compensation charges primarily
related to the resignation of certain executives, pursuant to the applicable employment and separation arrangements. The balance relates to
severance and outplacement services for approximately 615 employees that we identified and notified of termination, principally as a
result of eliminating duplicate functions within the combined company. This includes personnel related restructuring costs of $2.8 million
related to severance and outplacement services for 115 employees that we notified of termination in relation to our Medscape acquisition
and restructuring.

facilities charges of $15.5 million, comprised of future lease obligations and lease cancellation penalties.

$8.4 million of integration costs, which consist primarily of employee retention arrangements related to exit activities, moving and
relocation expenses, as well as outside professional fees related to the integration of our business.

Interest Income, Net. Net interest income decreased to $29.1 million in 2001 from $50.0 million in 2000 and $54.9 million in 2000 on a pro
forma basis. These decreases were due to lower average balances available for investment as a result of cash used to settle certain contracts with
certain of our strategic partners, repurchases of our common stock, acquisitions during 2001 and 2000, and payments made under our
restructuring and integration program.

We expect interest income to decrease significantly in 2002 due to lower balances available for investment as well as lower rates of return
available in the marketplace.

2000 and 1999

Revenue. Revenue for 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

2000 1999

$ % $ %

(in millions)

Transaction services 270.4 52.3 46.3 453
Physician services 83.6 16.2
Portal services 140.1 27.1 6.8 6.7
Inter-segment eliminations and other 23.1 44 49.0 48.0
517.2 100.0 102.1 100.0
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Our total revenue increased to $517.2 million in 2000 from $102.1 million in 1999. The increase is due primarily to the revenue sources that
were acquired in our 1999 and 2000 acquisitions. Transaction services revenue increased to 52.3% of total revenue in 2000 from 45.3% in 1999
as a result of our acquisition of Envoy in May 2000 and Carelnsite in September 2000. Physician services revenue comprised 16.2% of total
revenue in 2000. There was no physician services revenue in 1999. This increase is related to the revenue from our acquisition of Medical
Manager in September 2000. Portal services revenue increased to 27.1% of total revenue in 2000 from 6.7% in 1999 primarily resulting from the
full year impact of revenue from sponsorships of the WebMD, Inc. physician portal acquired in November 1999 and the acquisition of OnHealth
in September 2000. Inter-segment eliminations and other comprised 4.4% of total revenue in 2000 as compared to 48.0% in 1999. This decrease
reflects the decision to exit our technology consulting and outsourcing relationships and other non-core product offerings as well as the increase
of $3.1 million in the elimination of inter-segment revenues in 2000. There were no inter-segment revenues in 1999.

Revenue from related parties, which consists primarily of services provided to Microsoft and News Corporation in 2000 and of services
provided to Microsoft, UnitedHealth Group and SmithKline Labs in 1999, increased to $45.3 million in 2000 from $37.2 million in 1999. The
increase was primarily due to increases in subscription and third party advertising revenue through our Microsoft strategic alliance and from
health-related syndicated content licensed to News Corporation. Revenue from SmithKline Labs ceased being related party revenue in August
1999 when SmithKline Labs was sold to a third party that was not a stockholder, and revenue from UnitedHealth Group ceased being related
party revenue in January 2000, when the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UnitedHealth Group resigned from our Board of Directors.

Three of our customers, SmithKline Labs, Beech Street Corporation and UnitedHealth Group, each accounted for more than 10% of our
revenue in 1999, and together accounted for approximately 40.7% of our revenue for the same period. None of our customers individually
accounted for more than 10% of our revenue in 2000.

Cost of Operations. Cost of operations increased to $383.6 million in 2000 from $88.6 million in 1999. The increase is attributable to
expenses related to the companies acquired in 2000 and 1999, which contributed $141.5 million of the increase and increased personnel and
network operation costs, the cost to acquire exclusive arrangements to provide consumer healthcare-related content to other Web sites and other
costs required to support increased service revenue. Cost of operations as a percentage of revenues was 74.2% for the year ended December 31,
2000 compared to 86.7% for the year ended December 31, 1999. The decrease in cost of operations as a percentage of revenue is primarily
related to product mix.

Development and Engineering. Development and engineering expense increased to $58.8 million in 2000 from $29.7 million in 1999. The
increase was the result of a significant increase in the number of engineers engaged in the development of our applications and services.
Expenses related to the companies acquired in 2000 were $5.1 million.

Sales, Marketing, General and Administrative. Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense increased to $530.9 million in 2000
from $82.3 million in 1999. Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense excluding non-cash expenses was $370.9 million in 2000
compared to $66.8 million in 1999. This increase was primarily attributable to the companies acquired in late 1999 and 2000. Non-cash expenses
include content and distribution services expense of $87.5 million in 2000 and $7.9 million in 1999 and stock compensation expense of
$72.5 million in 2000 and $7.6 million in 1999. The increase was due to non-cash expenses related to content and distribution services that
resulted from the strategic alliances with News Corporation, which was consummated in January 2000, and Microsoft and DuPont which were
established in November 1999 with our acquisition of WebMD, Inc. The increase in non-cash stock compensation was a result of the
acquisitions made during 2000. Of the increase in sales, marketing, general and administrative expense, $120.4 million is a result of expenses
incurred by the companies acquired in 2000.
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Depreciation, Amortization and Other. Depreciation, amortization and other increased to $2.187 billion in 2000 from $193.1 million in
1999. The increase is due primarily to the amortization of intangible assets associated with the companies acquired in 2000 and 1999 and
$108.2 million of dividends and accretion of discount related to the Series A convertible preferred stock which was issued in 2000.

Restructuring and Integration Charges. In connection with our restructuring and integration efforts, we recorded a total charge in the year
ended December 31, 2000 of $452.9 million, which consisted of:

$320.9 million relating to the restructuring of contracts primarily associated with News Corporation and DuPont, of which $312.8 million
represented non-cash charges

personnel-related restructuring costs of $70.1 million, of which $53.1 million represented non-cash stock option compensation charges
primarily related to the resignation of certain executives, pursuant to the applicable employment and separation arrangements. The balance
relates to severance and outplacement services for approximately 1,100 employees that we identified and notified of termination,
principally as a result of eliminating duplicate functions within the combined company

facilities charges of $51.3 million, comprised of $37.2 million of future lease obligations and lease cancellation penalties and $14.1 million
of non-cash fixed asset write-offs related to vacating duplicate facilities

$10.6 million of integration costs, which consist primarily of employee retention arrangements related to exit activities, moving and
relocation expenses, as well as outside professional fees related to the integration of our business.

Loss on Investments. During 2000, we recorded a loss on equity investments in certain Internet-related companies of $39.6 million. We
assessed various factors related to these investments, including the decline in the market prices where available, the review of each of the
companies financial statements, including their cash positions and negative cash flow, as well as the change in market conditions with respect to
the ability of companies such as these Internet start-up companies to raise additional capital. Based on this assessment, we determined that a
permanent impairment existed in these investments.

Interest Income, Net. Net interest income increased to $50.0 million in 2000 from $3.5 million in 1999. The increase was due to higher
average cash balances resulting from the proceeds of Janus Capital Corporation s $930 million investment in us through its managed mutual
funds and $100 million from our strategic alliance with News Corporation, offset by the net cash paid for the companies acquired in 2000.
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Results of Operations for 2001 by Operating Segment

The following table presents the results of our operations for 2001 by quarter for each of our reportable segments:

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Year Ended
2001 2001 2001 2001 Dec. 31, 2001

(in millions)

Revenues

Transaction services $ 986 $ 978 $ 926 $ 950 $ 384.0

Physician services 66.1 66.5 62.1 65.5 260.2

Portal services 21.6 17.0 159 20.1 74.6

Inter-segment eliminations and

other, net(a) (1.8) 2.6) (3.6) 4.2) (12.2)
$ 1845 $ 178.7 $ 1670 $ 176.4 $ 706.6

| | | | |

Income (loss) before restructuring

and non-cash items

Transaction services $ 8.9 $ 89 $ 10.6 $ 13.6 $ 420

Physician services 5.3 6.6 34 5.5 20.8

Portal services (27.1) (21.1) (18.6) (12.6) (79.4)

Corporate and other (30.7) (26.2) (21.3) (16.6) (94.8)

Interest income, net 10.9 8.1 6.4 3.7 29.1
$ (327 $ (23.7) $ (195 $ (649 $ (823)

Restructuring and non-cash items

Depreciation, amortization and other $ (759.8) $(755.1) $ (751.5) $(123.4) $(2,389.8)

Non-cash content and distribution

services and stock compensation (38.2) (31.8) (26.4) (27.5) (123.9)

Impairment of long-lived and other

assets (3,826.9) (3,826.9)

Restructuring and integration (208.7) (11.2) 3) (46.6) (266.8)

Loss from continuing operations $(1,039.4) $(821.8) $(4,624.6) $(203.9) $(6,689.7)

| | | | |

(a) Includes revenues related to technology outsourcing and consulting relationships and other non-core products that we decided to exit as a
result of restructuring and integration efforts that commenced in the third quarter of 2000, and elimination of inter-segment revenues of
$3.1, $3.2, $3.6 and $4.2 in the four quarters of 2001, respectively.

The following is a discussion of the trends in quarterly results in each of our segments for 2001.

Transaction Services. Revenues declined slightly between the March and June quarters primarily due to seasonality in this segment.
Revenues declined between the June and September quarters due to seasonality and the elimination of revenues related to certain terminated
product offerings or relationships, such as hospital and laboratory connectivity arrangements and the consolidation of duplicate product
offerings. Revenues increased between the September and December quarters primarily as a result of seasonality. Medical related transactions
tend to be highest in the December and March quarters as a result of a combination of the impact of the winter season and the resetting of
insurance deductibles for patient visits to healthcare providers.
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result of our consolidation and integration efforts, particularly in the September and December quarters when the more significant operating
facilities were combined.
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We may exit additional non-core products or relationships that could decrease revenues by as much as $5 million per quarter, beginning in
the June 2002 quarter. We expect this to be more than offset by growth from new products and normal market growth. We do not anticipate that
any loss of non-core revenues will have a negative impact on operating results. We anticipate continued improvements in operating efficiencies
in 2002.

Physician Services. Revenues increased slightly between the March and June quarters primarily as a result of increased sales of transaction
processing subscription products to our installed base of physicians and the revenues from acquisitions completed at the end of the March
quarter, offset in part by lower levels of new product sales due to the uncertain economy and its impact on the investment spending decisions of
physician practices. Revenues declined between the June and September quarters primarily due to the impact of disruptions in sales and
installation activity with physician offices resulting from the after-effects of the events of September 11, 2001. Revenues increased between the
September and December quarters as the after-effects of September 11, 2001 abated.

Income before restructuring and non-cash items increased between the March and June quarters due to the impact of certain large high
margin sales in the June quarter. Income before restructuring and non-cash items decreased between the June and September quarters because of
the impact of the after-effects of the events of September 11, 2001 on revenues and on shipping and traveling expenses. Income before
restructuring and non-cash items increased in the December quarter as the after-effects of the events of September 11, 2001 abated.

We expect some sequential quarter revenue growth in 2002 as we begin the introduction of our new product offerings. We expect income
before restructuring and non-cash items for the year will increase in 2002, although sequential quarterly results may be impacted by roll out
costs of new products in advance of revenue generation.

Portal Services. Revenues declined between the March, June and September quarters as a result of the impact of the softening of the market
for advertising on us and certain of our customers and partners and the timing of advertising placement based on the product marketing
initiatives of our customers. Revenue increased between the September and December quarters due to higher revenues from our existing
customers as they launched their product marketing initiatives, offset in part by a reduction in barter advertising revenues as we renegotiated the
volume and site placement of advertising on our online distribution channels.

Loss before restructuring and non-cash items declined each sequential quarter in 2001 as a result of our restructuring and integration and
cost containment efforts. We have not yet completed the technology integration of our portal assets as well as the integration of the Medscape
operations and WebMD portal operations. These efforts will continue during the first half of 2002.

We anticipate portal revenues will increase slightly in 2002 as a result of the acquisition of the Medscape portal operations which occurred
on December 26, 2001, and growth in sales to both new and existing customers, offset by a reduction in revenues as we eliminated certain
non-core and non-profitable arrangements in 2001. We expect quarterly losses before restructuring and non-cash items to continue to decline
each quarter in 2002 and generate income before non-cash and restructuring expenses in the December 2002 quarter.

Inter-Segment Eliminations and Other, Net includes residual revenues from technology outsourcing and consulting relationships and other
non-core products that were exited in 2001 of $1.1 million and $0.6 million in the March and June quarters. The increases in inter-segment
eliminations each consecutive quarter results from the increased sales of transaction services products into the physician services customer base.

We expect the trend in selling the transaction products into the physician service customer base to continue in 2002.
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Corporate and Other includes expenses shared across all segments, such as executive personnel, corporate finance, corporate legal, human
resources and risk management as well as the residual costs during the March and June quarters related to the exit of discontinued products
resulting from our restructuring and integration efforts. Corporate and other expenses declined each consecutive quarter in 2001 as a result of
consolidating many duplicative corporate functions that existed in the companies acquired in 1999 and 2000.

We expect that the corporate and other expenses will continue to decline in 2002 both in absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenues as
we gain efficiencies as a result of the integration of these functions.

Interest Income, Net declined in each consecutive quarter in 2001 due to a decline in cash available for investment and a continuing decline
in interest rates.

We anticipate that interest income will continue to decline in 2002 because of the significant amount of cash we used to repurchase our
stock during the December 2001 quarter, cash used for acquisitions in the December 2001 quarter, and the continuing trend in lower interest
rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have incurred significant operating and net losses since we began operations and, as of December 31, 2001, we had an accumulated
deficit of $10.2 billion. We plan to continue to invest in the integration of our acquisitions, strategic relationships, infrastructure and applications
development. Our current expectation is to generate income before restructuring and integration charges, depreciation, amortization and other
non-cash items in 2002.

As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately $352.2 million in cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. As of
December 31, 2001, our working capital was $432.1 million. Subsequent to December 31, 2001, we invested approximately $150 million of
cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments into securities with maturities of up to three years. As a result, we expect working capital
will decrease when compared to December 31, 2001 as a result of classifying these investments as non-current assets.

Cash used in operating activities was $139.2 million in 2001 compared to $461.6 million in 2000 and $76.0 million in 1999. The cash used
during these periods was primarily attributable to the net losses of $6.684 billion in 2001, $3.086 billion in 2000 and $288.0 million in 1999,
offset in part by non-cash charges of $6.526 billion, $2.767 billion and $208.6 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. These non-cash
charges consist of depreciation and amortization, impairment of long-lived and other non-cash expenses related to stock compensation, and
content and distribution services, loss on investments and the non-cash portion of the restructuring and integration charge.

Cash provided by investing activities was $83.2 million in 2001, compared to cash used in investing activities of $361.0 million in 2000 and
cash provided by investing activities of $281.2 million in 1999. Cash provided in 2001 primarily related to maturities of federal agency notes.
Cash used in 2000 primarily related to $286.9 million in net cash paid when we acquired Envoy, Medical Manager, Carelnsite and OnHealth.
Cash provided in 1999 primarily related to $296.5 million in net cash acquired when we merged with WebMD, Inc., MedE America and
Medcast. Investments in property and equipment, excluding equipment acquired under capital leases, and internally developed software were
$24.2 million in 2001, $30.2 million in 2000 and $27.0 million in 1999. We invest our excess cash principally in U.S. Treasury obligations and
federal agency notes and expect to do so in the future.

Cash used in financing activities was $181.7 million in 2001, primarily related to repurchase of our common stock, offset by proceeds from
exercises of employee stock options. Cash provided by financing activities was $1.028 billion in 2000, primarily related to the net proceeds of
the sale of our common stock to Janus and News Corporation and its affiliates, partially offset by repurchases of our common stock. Cash
provided by financing activities was $61.1 million in 1999, primarily from the net proceeds of our initial public offering of $41.4 million, as well
as proceeds from exercises of employee stock options.
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In connection with the acquisition of Carelnsite, we issued $10.0 million of Series B convertible redeemable preferred stock. On March 15,
2002, we redeemed the outstanding Series B preferred stock for $10.0 million in accordance with its terms.

As of December 31, 2001, we did not have any material commitments for capital expenditures. Our principal commitments at December 31,
2001 consisted primarily of obligations under operating leases and guaranteed payments under our strategic agreements. We had entered into
agreements that provided for us to make aggregate guaranteed payments in the following estimated amounts, net of sublease income, under
operating leases and our strategic relationships. The lease amounts include leases identified in our restructuring and integration effort.

Strategic
Leases Relationships Total

Year Ending December 31,
(In millions)

2002 $22.6 $7.3 $29.9
2003 19.0 .6 19.6
2004 15.7 15.7
2005 13.3 13.3
2006 11.2 11.1
Thereafter 52.7 52.7

We believe that we will have sufficient cash resources to meet our presently anticipated working capital and capital expenditure
requirements, including the capital requirements related to the roll-out of our new products in 2002, for the foreseeable future. Our future
liquidity and capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including the success of the integration of our businesses, our existing and
new application and service offerings, competing technological and market developments, potential future acquisitions and additional
repurchases of our common stock. We may need to raise additional funds to support expansion, develop new or enhanced applications and
services, respond to competitive pressures, acquire complementary businesses or technologies or take advantage of unanticipated opportunities.
If required, we may raise such additional funds through public or private debt or equity financing, strategic relationships or other arrangements.
There can be no assurance that such financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at all, or that such financing will not be dilutive to our
stockholders.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. We adopted SFAS No. 133 for the year ending December 31, 2001. SFAS No. 133 establishes methods of accounting for
derivative financial instruments and hedging activities related to those instruments as well as other hedging activities. Derivatives that are not
designated as part of a hedging relationship must be adjusted to fair value through income. If the derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature
of the hedge, the effective portion of the hedge s change in fair value is either offset against the change in fair value of the hedged asset, liability
or firm commitment through income, or held in equity until the hedged item is recognized in income. The ineffective portion of a hedge s change
in fair value is immediately recognized in income. Adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material impact on our financial condition or
results of operations.

On July 20, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We
are required to adopt these pronouncements beginning January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 141 requires all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 to be accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill and other intangible
assets. Goodwill will no longer be subject to amortization over its estimated useful life. Rather, goodwill will be subject to at least an annual
assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test. All other acquired intangibles should be separately recognized if the benefit of
the intangible asset is obtained through contractual or other legal rights, or if the intangible asset can be sold, transferred, licensed, or exchanged,
regardless of the acquirer s intent to do so. Other intangibles will be
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amortized over their useful lives. As a result of adopting SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 effective as of January 1, 2002, the amortization of
goodwill will be eliminated, resulting in a significant reduction of amortization expense for goodwill and certain other intangible assets.
Additionally, we will be required to assess goodwill for impairment at least annually. We do not expect the impact of adopting the fair value
based impairment test to be significant.

On August 1, 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting For Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We are required to adopt this
pronouncement beginning January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 144 prescribes the accounting for long-lived assets (excluding goodwill) to be disposed of
by sale. SFAS No. 144 retains the requirement of SFAS No. 121 to measure long-lived assets classified as held for sale at the lower of its
carrying value or fair market value less the cost to sell. Therefore, discontinued operations are no longer measured on a net realizable basis, and
future operating results are no longer recognized before they occur. The impact of adopting SFAS No. 144 will not have a material impact on
our financial condition or results of operations.

On November 15, 2001, the FASB issued a Staff Announcement regarding EITF Topic D-103, which relates to the income statement
classification of reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses. This Announcement requires reimbursements received for out-of-pocket
expenses to be classified as revenue as opposed to being offset against the related expense. Application of this Announcement is required for
financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2001. Upon application, comparative financial statements for prior periods are required
to be reclassified to comply with the guidance in this Announcement. We will begin to apply the accounting prescribed in this Announcement in
2002. Upon application of this Announcement, we will reclassify reimbursements we have received for out-of-pocket expenses related to
postage for customized billing statements mailed to patients on behalf of healthcare providers. This reclassification will result in an increase in
revenue and cost of operations of $73.4 million for 2001 and $39.4 million for 2000.

Factors That May Affect Our Future Financial Condition or Results of Operations

Our ability to generate revenue could suffer if we do not continue to update and improve our existing products and services and develop
new ones

We must introduce new products and services and improve the functionality of our existing products and services in a timely manner in
order to retain existing customers and attract new ones. However, we may not be successful in responding to technological developments and
changing customer needs. The pace of change in the markets we serve is rapid and there are frequent new product and service introductions by
our competitors and by vendors whose products and services we use in providing our own products and services. If we do not respond
successfully to technological changes and evolving industry standards, our products and services may become obsolete. Technological changes
may also result in the offering of competitive products and services at lower prices than we are charging for our products and services, which
could result in our losing sales unless we lower the prices we charge.

We rely on a combination of internal development, strategic relationships, licensing and acquisitions to develop our products and services.
The cost of developing new healthcare information technology products and services is inherently difficult to estimate. Our development of
proposed products and services may take longer than originally expected, require more testing than originally anticipated and require the
acquisition of additional personnel and other resources. In addition, there can be no assurance that the products we develop or license will be
able to compete with the alternatives available to our customers. See Business Competition beginning on page 18.

New or newly integrated products and services will not become profitable unless they achieve sufficient levels of physician penetration
and market acceptance

There can be no assurance that physicians and payers will accept from us new products and services or products and services that result
from integrating existing and/or acquired products and services,
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including the products and services we are developing to integrate our transaction services and portal services into the physician office
workflow, such as our handheld solution.

Even physicians and payers who are already our customers may not purchase new or newly integrated products or services, especially when
they are initially offered. Physicians using our existing products and services may refuse to adopt new or newly integrated products and services
when they have made extensive investments in hardware, software and training relating to those existing products and services. Similarly, other
healthcare participants may not accept new or newly integrated products and services from us developed for their use. In addition, there can be
no assurance that any pricing strategy that we implement for any such products and services will be economically viable or acceptable to the
target markets. Failure to achieve broad penetration in target markets with respect to new or newly integrated products and services could have a
material adverse effect on our business prospects.

Achieving market acceptance for new or newly integrated products and services is likely to require substantial marketing efforts and
expenditure of significant funds to create awareness and demand by participants in the healthcare industry. In addition, deployment of new or
newly integrated products may require the use of additional resources for training our existing sales force and customer service personnel and for
hiring and training additional salespersons and customer service personnel. There can be no assurance that the revenue opportunities from new
or newly integrated products and services will justify amounts spent for their development, marketing and roll-out.

Developments in the healthcare industry could adversely affect our revenues

Almost all of our revenues come from customers in various parts of the healthcare industry. Developments that result in a reduction of
expenditures by customers or potential customers in the healthcare industry could have a material adverse effect on our business. The healthcare
industry has changed significantly in recent years and we expect that significant changes will continue to occur. However, the timing and impact
of developments in the healthcare industry are difficult to predict. Reductions in expenditures by healthcare industry participants could result
from, among other things:

government regulation or private initiatives that affect the manner in which healthcare providers interact with patients, payers or other
healthcare industry participants, including changes in pricing or means of delivery of healthcare products and services;

decreases in marketing expenditures by pharmaceutical companies or medical device manufacturers, including as a result of governmental
regulation or private initiatives that discourage or prohibit promotional activities by pharmaceutical or medical device companies;

consolidation of healthcare industry participants;
reductions in governmental funding for healthcare; and

adverse changes in business or economic conditions affecting healthcare payers or providers, pharmaceutical companies, medical device
manufacturers or other healthcare industry participants.

In addition, even if general expenditures by industry participants remain the same or increase, developments in the healthcare industry may
result in reduced spending on information technology and services or in some or all of the specific segments of that market we serve or are
planning to serve. Expectations of our customers regarding pending or potential developments may also affect their budgeting processes and
spending plans. We cannot provide assurance that the markets for our products and services will expand and develop or that we will have
adequate technical, financial and marketing resources to maintain or increase our share of these markets or to enter additional markets.

For additional discussion of the potential effects of regulatory matters on our business and on participants in the healthcare industry, see
Business Government Regulation beginning on page 20.
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We have incurred and will continue to incur substantial losses

We began operations in January 1996 and have incurred net losses from operations in each year since our inception. During 2001, we
identified certain indicators of possible impairment of long-lived assets, primarily goodwill and other acquired intangible assets and reviewed
substantially all of our long-lived assets for impairment. These indicators included a further decline in the price of our common stock to its
lowest price in the last twelve months accompanied by a significant decline in the volatility of our stock price, a sustained decline in valuations
in the e-health, technology and Internet sectors, and the impact of recent trends in general economic conditions. As a result of this review, we
determined that our long-lived and other assets, primarily goodwill and other acquired intangibles, were impaired and recorded a write-down of
$3.827 billion during 2001. Other unknown future indications of possible impairment charges, such as a significant downturn in one of our
business segments or general economic conditions, could result in an additional assessment of our long-lived assets for impairment and could
result in an additional impairment charge in the future.

As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately $660.3 million of goodwill and other intangible assets reflected on our financial
statements as a result of acquisitions. In the past, amortization of goodwill and other intangibles comprised a significant portion of our total net
losses. However, as a result of the write-down related to our long-lived and other assets, primarily goodwill and other acquired intangibles,
during the third quarter of 2001, and upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002, goodwill will no longer be subject to amortization
and, as a result, we expect depreciation and amortization expense to be approximately $120 million to $130 million in 2002. We will be required
to assess goodwill for impairment at least annually.

In addition, we currently intend to continue to invest in infrastructure development, applications development, sales and marketing, and
acquisitions in order to execute on our business plan. We expect that we will incur losses for at least the next 12 months and there can be no
assurances that we will ever be profitable.

Revisions to or terminations of our strategic relationships could adversely affect our revenue

As part of our restructuring and integration efforts, we undertook a review of our strategic relationships in light of several criteria, including
strategic relevance to us and to the other party, potential conflicts with other relationships as a result of the numerous acquisitions we had made,
profitability and impact on future revenue streams. As a result of this process, we entered into negotiations to revise or terminate many of those
relationships. In some cases, we were able to redefine the relationships in a manner that better serves the needs of each party. In other cases,
these discussions have resulted in termination of the relationships. These revisions and terminations have resulted in the elimination of potential
revenues. Although we have substantially completed this process, we are still in discussions with certain of our partners in an effort to redefine
those relationships in a manner that better serves the needs of each party. It is possible that, as a result of continuing discussions, these
relationships may be revised or terminated, which may result in the elimination of additional revenue.

We face significant competition for our products and services

The markets in which we operate are intensely competitive, continually evolving and subject to rapid technological change. There can be no
assurance that healthcare payers and providers will continue to use independent clearinghouses, such as WebMD Envoy, to transmit healthcare
transactions. Some of our existing payer and provider customers and some of our strategic partners compete with us or plan to do so or belong to
alliances that compete with us or plan to do so. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to maintain our existing links to payers or
develop new connections on satisfactory terms, if at all. Many of our competitors have greater financial, technical, product development,
marketing and other resources than we do. These organizations may be better known than we are and have more customers than we do. We
cannot provide assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against these
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organizations or any alliances they have formed or may form. For more information about the competition we face, see Business Competition
beginning on page 18.

WebMD Envoy s transaction volume and financial results could be adversely affected if we do not maintain relationships with practice
management system vendors and large submitters of healthcare EDI transactions

To market and increase the usage of our WebMD Envoy transaction services, we have developed relationships with practice management
system vendors and large submitters of healthcare claims. WebMD Medical Manager is a competitor of these practice management system
vendors. These vendors, as a result of our ownership of WebMD Medical Manager or for other reasons, may choose in the future to diminish or
terminate their relationships with WebMD Envoy. Some other large submitters of claims compete with, or may have significant relationships
with entities that compete with, WebMD Envoy or WebMD Health. To the extent that we are not able to maintain mutually satisfactory
relationships with the larger practice management system vendors and large submitters of healthcare EDI transactions, WebMD Envoy s
transaction volume and financial results could be adversely affected.

WebMD Envoy s transaction volume and financial results could be adversely affected if payers and providers conduct EDI transactions
without using a clearinghouse

There can be no assurance that healthcare payers and providers will continue to use WebMD Envoy and other independent companies to
transmit healthcare transactions. Some payers currently offer electronic data transmission services to healthcare providers that establish a direct
link between the provider and payer, bypassing third party EDI service providers such as WebMD Envoy. Any significant increase in the
utilization of direct links between healthcare providers and payers could have a material adverse effect on WebMD Envoy s transaction volume
and financial results. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to maintain our existing links to payers or develop new connections on
satisfactory terms, if at all.

Our ability to generate sufficient advertising and sponsorship revenue from our portal services is unproven

We derive a portion of our revenues from advertising and sponsorships on our Web sites and other Web sites that license our content. The
Internet advertising and sponsorship market is new and rapidly evolving, and no standards have been widely accepted to measure its
effectiveness as compared to traditional media advertising. Demand for Internet advertising in general has, during the past year, been weaker
than in prior periods and there can be no assurance that such demand will return to the levels seen previously. We cannot provide assurance that
we will be able to generate sufficient advertising or sponsorship revenue from our portal services to make these services profitable.

We are seeking to enter into relationships with advertisers and sponsors in which we will be compensated based on specific negotiated
criteria designed to demonstrate the value of our portal services to the advertisers and sponsors. The amount of compensation that we receive
from such arrangements is inherently difficult to estimate and may be less than we believed it would be at the time of entering into such
arrangements and at the time of performing the services.

Loss of a small number of key advertisers and sponsors could have a material adverse effect on our portal services revenues

We expect that a substantial portion of our portal services revenue from advertising and sponsorship sales in any given future period may
continue to come from a relatively small number of advertisers and sponsors. Thus, the loss of a small number of relationships with key
advertisers and sponsors or reduction of their purchases could have a material adverse effect on our portal services revenues. We may lose such
relationships or experience a reduction in purchases if we fail to meet our customers expectations or needs or to keep up with our competition or
for reasons outside our control, including changes in economic and regulatory conditions affecting the healthcare industry. See Developments in
the healthcare industry could
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adversely affect our revenues on page 55 and Business Government Regulation beginning on page 20.

The WebMD Health Network has limited experience with international operations and in adapting its services in non-United States
markets

To date, we have had limited experience in developing localized versions of our portal services and in marketing and operating our portal
services internationally. However, we intend to continue to devote resources to expanding our portals business to select non-United States
markets. To achieve this, we may enter into relationships with foreign business partners. We may experience difficulty in obtaining these
partners and managing international operations because of distance, trade regulation, language barriers and cultural differences. The financial
results of our international operations may be harmed by a variety of factors, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates, changes in a
country s orregion s political, regulatory and economic conditions, and difficulties we may encounter in protecting our intellectual property.

Our business could suffer if our software products and information technology systems contain errors, experience failures or do not
meet customer expectations

The software products and information technology systems we offer are inherently complex. Despite testing and quality control, we cannot
be certain that errors will not be found in prior versions, current versions or future versions or enhancements of our software products and
information technology systems. We could face breach of warranty or other claims or additional development costs if our software contains
undetected errors, or if our products experience failures, do not perform in accordance with their documentation, or do not meet the expectations
that our customers have for them. Even if these claims do not result in liability to us, investigating and defending against them could be
expensive and time consuming and could divert management s attention away from our operations. In addition, negative publicity caused by
these events may delay market acceptance of our products and services, including unrelated products and services.

We could be subject to product liability claims if our products malfunction or provide inaccurate information

We provide products and services that assist in healthcare decision-making, including some that relate to patient medical histories and
treatment plans. If these products malfunction or fail to provide accurate and timely information, we could be subject to product liability claims.
Even if these claims do not result in liability to us, investigating and defending against them could be expensive and time consuming and could
divert management s attention away from our operations. We attempt to limit, by contract, our liability for damages arising from negligence,
errors or mistakes. However, contractual limitations on liability may not be enforceable in certain circumstances or may otherwise not provide
sufficient protection to us from liability for damages. We maintain general liability insurance coverage, including coverage for errors and
omissions. However, it is possible that claims could exceed the amount of our applicable insurance coverage. In addition, this coverage may not
continue to be available on acceptable terms or may not be available in sufficient amounts.

We could lose customers and revenue if we fail to meet the performance standards in our contracts

Many of our customer contracts contain performance standards. If we fail to meet these standards, our customers may seek to terminate
their agreements with us, withhold payments due to us, seek refunds from us of part or all of the fees charged under those agreements or initiate
litigation or other dispute resolution procedures. Despite testing and quality control, we cannot be certain that we will meet these performance
standards. To the extent we fail to achieve these standards, our revenues and customer relationships could be adversely affected.
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Performance problems with WebMD Envoy s systems could adversely affect our business

Our payer and provider customer satisfaction and our business could be harmed if WebMD Envoy experiences delays, failures or loss of
data in its systems. We currently process our payer and provider transactions and data at our facilities and at a data center in Tampa, Florida that
is operated by Verizon Data Services. We have contingency plans for emergencies with our systems; however, we have limited backup facilities
to process information if these facilities are not functioning. The occurrence of a major catastrophic event or other system failure at any of our
facilities or at the Verizon facility could interrupt data processing or result in the loss of stored data, which could have a material adverse impact
on our business.

Some of our services will not be widely adopted until broadband connectivity is more generally available

Some of our services and planned services require a continuous broadband connection between the physician s office and our data center
and/or the Internet. The availability of broadband connectivity varies widely from location to location and even within a single geographic area,
due to factors such as the distance of a site from the central switching office. The future availability of broadband connections is unpredictable
and is not within our control. While we expect that many physician office locations will remain without ready access to broadband connectivity
for some period of time, we cannot predict how long that will be. Accordingly, the lack of these broadband connections will continue to place
limitations on the number of sites that are able to utilize our Internet-based services and the revenue we can expect to generate from those
services.

If our systems or the Internet experience security breaches or are otherwise perceived to be insecure, our business could suffer

A security breach could damage our reputation or result in liability. We retain confidential information, including patient health
information, in our processing centers and other facilities. It is critical that these facilities and infrastructure remain secure and be perceived by
the marketplace as secure. We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against security breaches and hackers
or to alleviate problems caused by breaches. Despite the implementation of security measures, this infrastructure may be vulnerable to physical
break-ins, hackers, improper employee or contractor access, computer viruses, programming errors, attacks by third parties or similar disruptive
problems. In addition, any well-publicized compromise of Internet security, whether or not related to our own operations, could reduce demand
for our Internet-based services.

Our Internet-based services are dependent on the development and maintenance of the Internet infrastructure

Our ability to deliver our Internet-based services is dependent on the development and maintenance of the infrastructure of the Internet by
third parties. This includes maintenance of a reliable network backbone with the necessary speed, data capacity and security, as well as timely
development of complementary products such as high-speed modems, for providing reliable Internet access and services. The Internet has
experienced, and is likely to continue to experience, significant growth in the number of users and the amount of traffic. If the Internet continues
to experience increased usage, the Internet infrastructure may be unable to support the demands placed on it. In addition, the performance of the
Internet may be harmed by increased usage.

The Internet has experienced a variety of outages and other delays as a result of damages to portions of its infrastructure, and it could face
outages and delays in the future. These outages and delays could reduce the level of Internet usage as well as the availability of the Internet to us
for delivery of our Internet-based services. In addition, our customers who utilize our Web-based services depend on Internet service providers,
online service providers and other Web site operators for access to our Web site. All of these providers have experienced significant outages in
the past and could experience outages, delays and other difficulties in the future due to system failures unrelated to our systems. Any significant
interruptions
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in our services or increases in response time could result in a loss of potential or existing users of and advertisers and sponsors on our Web site
and, if sustained or repeated, could reduce the attractiveness of our services.

The performance of our business depends on attracting and retaining qualified executives and employees
Our performance depends on attracting and retaining key personnel, including executives, product managers, software developers and other

technical personnel and sales and marketing personnel. Failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on the performance of our business
and the results of our operations.

Our business will suffer if we fail to successfully integrate acquired businesses and technologies or to assess the risks in particular

transactions

We have in the past acquired, and may in the future acquire, businesses, technologies, services, product lines and other assets. The
successful integration of the acquired businesses and assets into our operations can be critical to our future performance. The amount and timing
of the expected benefits of any acquisition are subject to significant risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not
limited to, those relating to:

our ability to cross-sell products and services to customers with which we have established relationships and those with which the acquired
business has established relationships;

our ability to retain or replace key personnel;
potential conflicts in payer, provider, strategic partner, sponsor or advertising relationships;
our ability to coordinate organizations that are geographically diverse and may have different business cultures; and

compliance with regulatory requirements.

We cannot guarantee that any acquired businesses will be successfully integrated with our operations in a timely manner, or at all. Failure to
successfully integrate acquired businesses or to achieve anticipated operating synergies, revenue enhancements or cost savings could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Although our management attempts to evaluate the risks inherent in each transaction and to value acquisition candidates appropriately, we
cannot assure you that we will properly ascertain all such risks or that acquired businesses and assets will perform as we expect or enhance the
value of our company as a whole. In addition, acquired companies or businesses may have larger than expected liabilities that are not covered by
the indemnification, if any, we are able to obtain from the seller.

Our business may be subject to litigation

Our business and operations may subject us to claims, litigation and other proceedings brought by private parties and governmental
authorities. For information regarding certain proceedings to which we are currently a party, see Legal Proceedings beginning on page 29.

Healthcare regulation could adversely affect our business

The healthcare industry is highly regulated and is subject to changing political, regulatory and other influences. These factors affect the
purchasing practices and operations of healthcare organizations. Federal and state legislatures and agencies periodically consider programs to
reform or revise the United States healthcare system. These programs may contain proposals to increase governmental involvement in
healthcare, lower reimbursement rates or otherwise change the environment in which healthcare industry participants operate. Healthcare
industry participants may respond by reducing their investments or
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postponing investment decisions, including investments in our applications and services. We are unable to predict future proposals with any
certainty or to predict the effect they would have on our business.

Existing laws and regulations also could create liability, cause us to incur additional cost or restrict our operations. Many healthcare laws
are complex, applied broadly and subject to interpretation by courts and other governmental authorities. In addition, many existing healthcare
laws and regulations, when enacted, did not anticipate the methods of healthcare e-commerce and other products and services that we provide.
However, these laws and regulations may nonetheless be applied to our products and services. Our failure, or the failure of our business partners,
to accurately anticipate the application of these healthcare laws, or other failure to comply, could create liability for us, result in adverse
publicity and negatively affect our business.

For more information regarding healthcare regulation to which we are or may be subject, see Business Government Regulation beginning
on page 20.

The effect of HIPAA on our business is difficult to predict and its implementation may cause unexpected problems

As described under Business Government Regulation Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 beginning on page 20
and Business Our Products and Services Transaction Services or WebMD Envoy HIPAA on page 8, we believe that we are well-positioned to
assist payers, providers and other healthcare participants with their efforts to comply with HIPAA and in their management of the period during
which they and others are migrating to compliance. We are continuing to develop our HIPAA-ready solutions and our business strategy for
marketing those solutions and services. Changes in compliance deadlines or in other aspects of the HIPAA regulations may cause us to make
changes to our strategy or require us to develop different solutions. The effect of HIPAA on our business is difficult to predict and there can be
no assurances that we will adequately address the business risks created by HIPAA and its implementation or that we will be able to take
advantage of any resulting business opportunities. In addition, we are unable to predict what changes to the HIPAA regulations will be made in
the future or how those changes could affect our business.

The extension of the deadline for complying with the HIPAA transaction standards will cause us to have a longer period of time in which
we must accommodate our customers varying states of readiness to test new systems and move to the new standards. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to meet our customers requested deadlines because of our inability to predict or significantly affect the timing of our
customers requests for testing and validation of new systems and connections. The extended compliance period also may allow certain of our
customers time to build compliant transaction systems that may diminish their need for certain of our transaction services.

Regulation of the Internet could adversely affect our business

The Internet and its associated technologies are subject to government regulation. Our failure, or the failure of our business partners, to
accurately anticipate the application of applicable laws and regulations, or any other failure to comply, could create liability for us, result in
adverse publicity, or negatively affect our business. In addition, new laws and regulations, or new interpretations of existing laws and
regulations, may be adopted with respect to the Internet or other online services covering user privacy, patient confidentiality, consumer
protection and other issues, including pricing, content, copyrights and patents, distribution, and characteristics and quality of products and
services. We cannot predict whether these laws or regulations will change or how such changes will affect our business. Government regulation
of the Internet could limit the effectiveness of the Internet for the methods of healthcare e-commerce that we are providing or developing or even
prohibit the sale of particular products and services.

For more information regarding government regulation of the Internet to which we are or may be subject, see Business Government
Regulation beginning on page 20.
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We face potential liability related to the privacy and security of personal information we collect on our Web sites

Internet user privacy has become a controversial issue both in the United States and abroad. We have privacy policies posted on our
consumer portal and our professional portal that we believe comply with applicable laws requiring notice to users about our information
collection, use and disclosure practices. However, whether and how existing privacy and consumer protection laws in various jurisdictions apply
to the Internet is still uncertain and may take years to resolve. Any legislation or regulation in the area of privacy of personal information could
affect the way we operate our Web sites and could harm our business. Further, we can give no assurance that the statements on our portals, or
our practices, will be found sufficient to protect us from liability or adverse publicity in this area.

For more information regarding regulation of the collection, use and disclosure of personal information to which we may be subject, see
Business Government Regulation beginning on page 20.

Third parties may challenge the enforceability of our online agreements

The law governing the validity and enforceability of online agreements and other electronic transactions is evolving. We could be subject to
claims by third parties that our online agreements with consumers and physicians that provide the terms and conditions for use of our portal
services and physician services are unenforceable. A finding by a court that these agreements are invalid could harm our business and require
costly changes to our portals.

Third parties may bring claims as a result of the activities of our strategic partners

We could be subject to claims by third parties, and to liability, as a result of the activities, products or services of our strategic partners. We
state on our portals that we do not control or endorse the products or services of our strategic partners. However, there can be no assurance that
the statements made in our portal will be found to be sufficient to ensure that we are not held responsible for such activities, products or services.
Furthermore, even if these claims do not result in liability to us, investigating and defending these claims could be expensive, time-consuming
and result in adverse publicity that could harm our business.

Third parties may bring claims against us as a result of content provided on our Web site, which may be expensive and time consuming

to defend

We could be subject to third party claims based on the nature and content of information supplied on our Web site by us or third parties,
including content providers, medical advisors or users. We could also be subject to liability for content that may be accessible through our Web
site or third party Web sites linked from our Web site or through content and information that may be posted by users in chat rooms, bulletin
boards or on Web sites created by professionals using our Web site application. Even if these claims do not result in liability to us, investigating
and defending against these claims could be expensive and time consuming and could divert management s attention away from our operations.

Our intellectual property may be subject to infringement claims or may be infringed upon

Our intellectual property is important to our business. The steps we take to protect our intellectual property and proprietary information may
prove to be inadequate and, whether or not adequate, may be expensive. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect potential or
actual misappropriation or infringement of our intellectual property or proprietary information. Even if we do detect misappropriation or
infringement by a third party, there can be no assurance that we will be able to enforce our rights at a reasonable cost, or at all. In addition, our
rights to intellectual property and proprietary information may not prevent independent third-party development and commercialization of
competing products or services.

We could be subject to claims that we are misappropriating or infringing intellectual property or other proprietary rights of others. These
claims, even if not meritorious, could be expensive to defend and divert
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management s attention from our operations. If we become liable to third parties for infringing these rights, we could be required to pay a
substantial damage award and to develop non-infringing technology, obtain a license or cease selling the applications that contain the infringing
intellectual property. We may be unable to develop non-infringing technology or obtain a license on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.
We may also be required to indemnify our customers if they become subject to third party claims relating to intellectual property that we license
or otherwise provide to them.

We may not be able to raise additional funds when needed for our business or to exploit opportunities

Our future liquidity and capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including the success of the integration of our businesses,
our existing and new applications and service offerings, competing technologies and market developments, potential future acquisitions and
additional repurchases of our common stock. We may need to raise additional funds to support expansion, develop new or enhanced applications
and services, respond to competitive pressures, acquire complementary businesses or technologies or take advantage of unanticipated
opportunities. If required, we may raise such additional funds through public or private debt or equity financing, strategic relationships or other
arrangements. There can be no assurance that such financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at all, or that such financing will not be
dilutive to our stockholders.

The proposed disposition of our plastics and filtration technologies business may not be completed in accordance with our expectations

The proposed disposition of our Porex plastics and filtration technologies business has taken longer than originally expected. We
determined not to accept any of the offers made by potential buyers because we believed that the offers did not reflect the value of the Porex
business. We plan to continue to explore various divestiture alternatives for the Porex business.

Until we dispose of our plastics and filtration technologies business, we will be subject to risks associated with that business

Until the proposed disposition of our Porex plastic and filtration technologies business is completed, we will continue to operate that
business and to be subject to additional risks associated with that business, which include:

We face significant competition for the products and services of our plastic and filtration technologies business. Competition in our
plastics and filtration technology business is characterized by the introduction of competitive products at lower prices. We believe that
Porex s principal competitive strengths are its manufacturing processes, quality control, relationships with its customers and distribution of
its proprietary healthcare products.

In the porous plastics area, Porex s competitors include other producers of porous plastic materials as well as companies that
manufacture and sell products made from materials other than porous plastics which can be used for the same purposes as Porex s products.
In this area, Porex has several direct competitors in the United States, Europe and Asia. Porex s porous plastic pen nibs compete with felt and
fiber tips manufactured by a variety of suppliers worldwide. Other Porex industrial products made of porous plastic compete, depending on
the industrial application, with porous metals, metal screens, fiberglass tubes, pleated paper, resin-impregnated felt, ceramics and other
substances and devices.

The market for Porex s injection molded solid plastic components and products, including its medical products, is highly competitive
and highly fragmented. Porex s pipette tips and racks also compete with similar products manufactured by domestic and foreign
manufacturers. Porex s injection molding and mold making services compete with services offered by several foreign and domestic
companies. The MEDPOR® Biomaterial products compete for surgical use against autogenous and allograph materials and alloplastic
biomaterials. Porex s surgical drains and markers compete against a variety of products from several manufacturers.
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Healthcare regulation could adversely affect our plastics and filtration technologies business. Porex manufactures and distributes
medical/surgical devices, such as plastic and reconstructive surgical implants and tissue expanders, which are subject to government
regulations, under the FDA Act and additional regulations promulgated by the FDA. Future healthcare products may also be subject to these
regulations and approval processes. Compliance with these regulations and the process of obtaining approvals can be costly, complicated
and time-consuming, and we cannot assure you that these approvals will be granted on a timely basis, if ever.

The nature of Porex s products exposes it to product liability claims and may make it difficult to get adequate insurance coverage. The
products sold by Porex expose it to potential risk for product liability claims, particularly with respect to Porex s life sciences, clinical,
surgical and medical products. We believe that Porex carries adequate insurance coverage against product liability claims and other risks.
We cannot assure you, however, that claims in excess of Porex s insurance coverage will not arise. In addition, Porex s insurance policies
must be renewed annually. Although Porex has been able to obtain adequate insurance coverage at an acceptable cost in the past and
believes that it is adequately indemnified for products manufactured by others and distributed by it, we cannot assure you that in the future
Porex will be able to obtain this insurance at an acceptable cost or be adequately protected by this indemnification.

Since March 1991, Porex has been named as one of many co-defendants in a number of actions brought by recipients of silicone gel
mammary implants. For more information regarding these actions, see the information under Legal Proceedings beginning on page 29.

Environmental regulation could adversely affect our plastics and filtration business. Certain environmental regulations apply to Porex s
business and Porex is subject to scheduled and random checks by environmental authorities. Porex seeks to conduct its business in
substantial compliance with applicable regulations relating to the environment and hazardous wastes. However, we cannot be certain that
Porex will not be found to have violated those regulations or taken other actions that cause it to be required to pay fines, remediation costs
and damages, the amounts of which could be material.

64

Table of Contents 74



Edgar Filing: WEBMD CORP /NEW/ - Form 10-K405

Table of Contents

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal and maintain adequate liquidity, while at the same time
maximizing the yield we receive from our investment portfolio. This objective is accomplished by adherence to our investment policy, which
establishes the list of eligible securities and credit requirements for each investment.

Changes in prevailing interest rates will cause the principal amount of the investment to fluctuate. To minimize this risk, we maintain our
portfolio of cash equivalents, short-term investments and marketable securities in commercial paper, non-government debt securities, money
market funds and highly liquid United States Treasury notes. We view these high grade securities within our portfolio as having similar market
risk characteristics. Principal amounts for short-term investments and marketable securities expected to mature are $99.2 million during 2002.

We have not utilized derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

Currently, substantially all of our sales and expenses are denominated in United States dollars and, as a result, we have experienced no
significant foreign exchange gains and losses to date. We conduct only limited transactions in foreign curr